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L’l

The Members of the
St. Tammany Parish School Board
Covington, Louisiliana:

The comprehensgive annual financial report of the St. Tammany
Parish School Board for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, 1is hereby
submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the
completeness and falrness of the presentation, including all
digclosures, rests with the School Board. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data 1s accurate 1n all material
reaspects and is reported 1n a manner designed to present fairly the
finarncial position and results of operations of the School Board.
All disclosures necesgsary (Lo enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the School Board's financial activities have been
included.

The comprehensive annual financial report 1s presented in four

sections: introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The
introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the School
Board's organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The
financial secLion includes the independent  auditors’ report,
management discussion and analysis section, basic financial statements
and the combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules, The statistical section includes selected financial and

demographic information, generally presented on a multl-year basis,

The Schoeol Board ig required to undergo an annual single audit in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act, as amended,
and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Information
related to this single audit, including the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, findings and recommendations, and the Reports on
Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based on
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards and the Report on Compliance with
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
Vi




Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and Internal Control
over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133, are included 1n
the single audit section of this reporrc.

This report includes all funds and activities for which the School

Board exercises financial accountability. The School Board 1is a
legislative body authorized to govern the public education system of
St. Tammany Parish, Louislana. A fifteen-member board governs the

School System with each member gerving a concurrent four-year term.
The current bhoard is in the fourth year of 1ts four-year term.

It is the responsibility of the School Board to make public
education available to the residents of St. Tammany Parish, including
instructional personnel, instructional facilities, administrative
support, business services, operation and maintenance and bus
transportation. The School Board provides a full range of public
education services appropriate to grade levels ranging from pre-
kindergarten through grade 12. These include regular and enriched
academic education, special education for handicapped children and
vocational education. The school system has a current enrollment of
approximately 32,900 pupills.

The School Board is authorized to establish public schools as it
deems necessary, to provide adequate school facilities for the
children of the parish, to determine the number of teachers to be
employed and to determine the local supplement to their salaries.
Accordingly, since the School Board members are elected by the public
and have decision-making authority, the power to designate management,
the ability to significantly influence operations and primary
accountability for financial matters, the School Board is not included
in any obther governmental reporting entity.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

St . Tammany Parish is one of the southeastern parishes {(counties)
of Louisiana and covers an area of 1,141 sguare miles. It is located
directly north of New Orleans on the north shore of Lake Pontchartrain
and has been ranked as one of the fastest growth areas in the United
States. The population of 194,000 1s an increase of nearly 40 percent
since 1985,

The economy of 8t. Tammany Parish is primarily residential
oriented, which has brought an influx of retail and service
establishments, offices and shopping centers. However, there 15 a
unique blend of residents employed in a variety of diverse industries
ranglng from agriculture to sgpace-aged technology. The parish
currently has a 4.9 percent unemployment rate as compared to a
slLatewide rate of 7.0 percent. The per caplita personal i1ncome oOf St.
Tammany ranked first in the State. The value of single-family homes
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in St. Tammany Parish averaged nearly $152,000 parishwide. Total
retall sales for 2001 were in excess of $2.4 billion in St. Tammany
Parish.

The St. Tammany Parish Economic Development Foundation (STEDF) 1is
playing a major role 1in coordinating with other regional economic
development organizations to target key commercial and industrial
interest for future development. Nearly 2 million square teet are
available and approximately 65% of all future employees are expected
to reside in $St. Tammany Parisgh.

This population growth and economic expansion presents both
opportunities and challenges for the School Board in the c¢oming years.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The School Beard has been in the midst of a major capital
expansion program of its school facllities as a result of the growth

experienced within the Parish. This expansilion program started with
the issuance of $25 million in bonds in 1996 and continued with $55
million in additicnal bonds in 1998, In 2002, The school board issued
another $44 million in bonds with an additional $10 million slated for
fiscal year 2002-03. Since 1996, the School Board has expanded 1its
schools capacity by adding many additional classrooms and 7 new
schools. At least 3 new schools and more classroom additlions are

scheduled for construction over the next few years.

This expansion project has enabled the St. Tammany School Board
to reduce the student/teacher ratio for all classrooms. The average
elementary student/teacher ratio is now approaching 20 students per
classroom.

Student/teacher ratios are just one piece of the puzzle when it
comes to achieving higher 1levels of success through student

achievement. The St. Tammany School Board has over time become a
magnate for attracting highly skilled, experienced, certified teachers
and administrators for our school system. Virtually all (99.7%) of
the nearly 2500 full-time teachers in St. Tammany Parish are

certificated and more than 41 percent of our teachers hold an advanced
level degree. 61 percent of our teachers have more than 10 years
teaching experience and all of our principals and assistant principals
each holds at a minimum of both a masters degree and teacher
certification.

The school system has experienced unprecedented galns in student
achievement levels by lowering the student teacher ratios across the
board, retaining more qualified teachers and administrators, and
dedicating our staff to reach higher goals. In 2002, the St. Tammany
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Parisgh School Board was ranked as the numbel’ one District in the State
of Louisiana for District Performance Scores (DPS).

currently, the Southern Agsociation of Colleges and &chools
(SACS) has accredited all schools within the sSt. Tammany Parish School
Digtrict.

Not all of our successes can be attributable to our staff and
teachers though. The School Boards Parent Involvement Program 18
utilized in every school in the system. The goal of this program 1is
to involve parents in the child’'s education in whatever capacity the
parents offer (first aid assistant, Ilibrary aide, classroom tutor,
parenting workshop, etc.). In fiscal 2002, parent volunteers donated
the equivalent of over $1.92 million dollars in volunteer hours.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Controls. Management of the School Board 1is responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed to ensure
that the assets of the School Beoard are protected from lossg, theft orx
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles. Internal controls are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes

that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgementgs by management.

Single Audit. As a recipient of federal, state and local
financial assistance, the School Board also 1is responsible for
ensuring that adequate internal controls are 1in place to ensure
compliance with applicable 1laws and regulations related to those
programs. This internal control structure is subject to periodic
evaluation by management.

As a part of the School Board's single audit, tests are made to
determine the adequacy of internal contreols, including that portion
related to federal programs, as well as to determine that the School
Board has complied with applicable laws and regulations. The results
of the School Beoard's single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2002 provided no instances of material weaknesses 1n internal controls
or significant viclations of applicable laws and regulations.

Budgeting Controls. In addition, the School Board malntains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls 1s to
ensure compliance with the annual appropriated budgets, including all
subsequent amendments, approved by the School Board. Activities of
the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds and
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Capital Projects Funds are included 1in the annual appropriated budget.
The level of budgetary control (that is, the 1level at which
expenditures cannot exceed the appropriated amount) is established at
the function or project 1level within the individual funds. The
School Board also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one
technigue of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered amounts at
year-end, for budgetary purposes, are included as expenditures in the
General Fund and the Capital Projects Funds. In the other funds,
encumbered amounts lapse at year-end; however, encumbrances generally
are reappropriated as part of the next year's budget.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the
financial section of this report, the School Board continues to meet
its respongikbility for sound financial management.

General Government Functions. The following schedule presents a
summary of governmental funds revenues for the fiscal year ended June

30, 2002.

Revenues June 30, 2002 Percent June 30, 2001 Percent

Local Sources

Ad Valorem Tax S 48,344,307 18.68% S 45,507,454 18.61%
Sales & Use Tax S 2,847,766 20.42% S 48,795,600 19.95%
Interest 5 3,356,674 0l1.30% S 7,007,188 02.87%
Meal Sales S 2,746,381 01.06% S 2,688,320 01.10%
Tuition S 987,392 00.38% 5 965, 985 00.40%
Other 5 790,800 00.31% S 742,042 00.30%
Sub-total Local § 109,073,320 42 .15% S 105,706,58% 43.23%
State Sources

Equllizaton S 124,341,219 48 .06% S 117,742,209 48 .14%
Revenue Sharing $ 1,759,322 00.70% S 1,802,063 00.74%
PIP S 885,409 00.34% S 929,037 00.38%
Other S 3,183,339 01.23% S 3,075,553 01.26%
Sub-total State $ 130,209,289 50.33% S 123,548,862 50.52%
Federal Sources

Grants S 19,458,830 07.52% S 15,285,933 06.25%
Sub-total Fed. S 19,458,830 07.52% 5 15,285,933 06.20h%

Total Revenue $ 258,741,439 100.00% S 244,541,384 100.00%

w

The two most significant local revenue sources are property taxes
and sales taxes. Property tax millages are established by the State
Constitution and/or tax propositions approved by the electorate. Any
increase to current millages or additional millages must be approved
by a referendum of the voters. Sales taxes show a continued growth in



collections, which ig attributable to the expansion of the local
economy over the previous year and to the dgrowth in the population.
The School Board collects the maximum two percent sales tax allowed by
gsrate law. The decline 1in earnings on investments 1is primarily
attributable to the lowest interest rates offered since the 1960°*s.

State revenue sources continue to provide the majority of the
School Board’s revenue. The increase 1n the State’s 2001-02
appropriation for equalization 1is composed primarily of additional
funding generated by the growth in student enrollment.

The increase in federal sources is primarily due to extra funding
for the wvarious programs directed toward students with disabilities,
particularly for those in the IDEA or special education program and in
after school learning.

The following schedule presents a summary of general governmental
funds expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 and the
representative percentage of total governmental expenditures for the
respective year.

Expenditures June 30, 2002 Paercent June 30, 2001 Percent
Instructional

Regular Education $ 83,892,097 31.49% 7 81,795,569 32.65%
Special Education $ 42,332,518 15.89% 5 37,450,483 14.95%
Vocational Education 5 4,324,161 01.63% S 4,117,904 01.64%
ODther lnstrructional 5 8,309,312 03.12% & 6,721,294 02.68%
Special Programs 5 3,921,534 01.47% 5 3,643,253 01.45%
Adult Education Programs 5 525, 911 00.20% 5 422,939 00.17%
Sub-total Instructional S 143,305,530 53.80% S 134,151,442 53.54%
Support Services

Pupil Support 5 9,425,494 03.54% 5 8,574,646 03.42%
Instructional Staff Support S 9,483,156 03.5h6% 5 8,604,165 03.43%
General Administration 5 4,121,871 01.55% 2 3,764,886 01.50%
School Administration S 12,363,508 04.64% $ 10,914,896 04.36%
Business Administration S 1,582,030 00.59% 5 1,586,630 00.63%
Operations & Maintenance of Plant § 17,528,724 06 .58% S 17,092,972 06.82%
Pupil Transportation $ 14,703,637 05.52% 5 13,239,045 05.28%
Central Services s 2,208,452 00.83% 2 1,813,426 00.72%
Sub-total Support Services S 71,417,272 26.81% % 65,550,666 26.16%
Other Services

Food Services 5 12,687,021 04.76% $ 11,946,216 04.77%
Community Service Programs 5 964, 365 00.36% 5 BEG, 772 D0.34%
Facilities Acquisition & Const. 5 22,808,299 08.56% 5 22,391,824 08.93%
bebt Service $ 15,205,126 05.71% $ 15,689,593 06.26%
Sub-total Other Services 5 51,664,811 19.39% $ 50,884,405 20.30%
Total Governmental Expenditures 3§ 266,387,613 100.00% 2 250,626,513 100.00%
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The overall increase in expenditures is primarily attributable to
the continued growth in student enrollment. As a vresult, an
additional 44 teachers were added to the staff during the 2002 fiscal
yYear. As shown above, expenditures for instructional purposes
increased by %9.2 million, which represents approximately 6.87% of the
total increase 1in expenditures. This indicates that we are continuing
to place a larger portion of our resources into the c¢lassroom.
Support Service expenditures also increased across the board. The
approximate $1.5 million increase 1n school administration was mostly
due to an 1increase 1n the number of assistant principals as part of
the Board’s goal at lowering the student to administrator ratio for
1ts schools.

General Fund Balance. The fund balance of the General Fund
increased in flscal year 2002 to $55,886,107, which is the equivalent
of 101 days of expenditures. Approximately $15 million of the general
fund balance 1is primarily earmarked for the improvement in ratings of
any future debt 1ssuance but the remaining $40 million is available
for appropriations., The School Board does not anticipate entering the
short-term debt market to finance current operating expenditures.

Debt Administration. At June 30, 2002, the School Board had a
number of debt i1ssues outstanding, including $8,885,000 of sales tax
bonds, $143,820,000 of general obligation bonds, and $835,000 of
certificates of indebtedness.

The sales tax bonds are serviced by an irrevocable pledge of the
sales taxes collected by the school board. Sales tax recelpts are
placed in reserve 1in the debt service funds until sufficient balances
are maintained to meet the debt service requirements. As of June 30,
2002, the Schecol Board maintains approximately $2.6 million 1in the
sinking and reserve funds for these issues.

The general obligation bonds are secured by the good faith and
credit of the S8t. Tammany Parish School Roard. These bonds are
currently serviced by ad valorem taxes collected by the school board.
As of June 30, 2002, the School Board maintains approximately $9.3
million reserve funds for these issues.

The certificates of indebtedness are serviced by an irrevocable
pledge from the levy and collection of a special General Fund ad
valorem tax of 4.47 mills.

Not included in the School Board's long-term debt are $1,955,000
of School Digtrict No. 12 General Obligation BRonds defeased in June
1991, $3,415,000 of School District No. 12 General Obligation Bonds
defeased on February 2002, and $15,000 of S8chool District No. 8
General CObligation Bonds defeased in February 1993. The Notes to the

X1l
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Financial Statements contain more detailed information on the defeased
bonds.

The School Board is limited by state statute from issuing sales
tax bonds in excess of seventy-five percent of the anticipated sales
tax revenues. The one-cent sales and use tax dedicated to service the
bonds will explire in 2007 when the bonds are redeemed.

Cash Management. Cash temporarily 1dle during the year was
lnvested 1n demand deposits, certificates of deposit and Loulsiana
Asset Management Program (" LAMP” }. The average yield on investments

was 2.58 percent and the School Board earned interest revenue of
$3,499,995 on all investments for the year ended June 30, 2002.

The S8School Board's invesgtment policy 1s to minimize credit and
market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio.
Accordingly, deposits were either 1nsured by federal depository
insurance or secured by the pledge of securities owned by the

financial institution. These pledged securities are held by a
mutually agreed upon third-party financial institution in the name of
the School Board. All of the investments held by the School Board

during the year and at June 30, 2002 are classified in the category of
the lowest credit risk as defined by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board.

Risk Management. In fiscal year 1988, the School Board initiated
a limited risk management program for workers' compensation. As part
of this comprehensive plan, resources began to be accumulated 1n an
Internal Service Fund to meet potential losses. In addition, various
rigsk control techniques, including employee accident prevention
training, have been implemented to minimize accident-related losses.
Third-party coverage 1s currently maintained for 1individual workers'
compensation claims in excess of $250,000,

In addition, in fiscal vyear 1990, the School Board initiated a
limited risk wmanagement program for general liability and property
damage. Resources are transferred from the General Fund and
accumulated in an Internal Service Fund to pay potential claims. The
School Board has undertaken a program to determine methods to 1limit
cur exposure to general liability c¢laims and to minimize any potential
loss of or damage to property. Third party coverage of commercial
insurance for individual claims 1n excess of $150,000 for both general
liability and property damage 1s maintained by the School Board.

OTHER INFORMATION
Independent Audit. State statutes require an annual audit by

independent certified public accountants. The accounting and auditing
firm of Postlethwalite and Netterville, LPC was selected by the School
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Board to perform the figscal year 2002 audit. In addition to meeting
the requirements set forth 1in state statutes, the audit also was
designed to meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act, as
amended and related OMB C(Circular A-133. The independent auditors'
report on the financial statements 1s included in the financial
section of this report. The independent auditors' reports related
specifically to the Single Audit Act are included in the Single Audit
Section.

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the
United States and (Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the St. Tammany Parish School
Board for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2001,

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government
unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive financial report, whose contents conform to program
standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

The St. Tammany Parish School Board was alsc awarded a
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting for its comprehensive
annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 by the
Agsociation of School Business Officials, International (ASBO} .

The award certifies that the school system has presented its
comprehensive annual financial report to the ASBO Panel of Review for
critical review and evaluation and that the report was judged to have
complied with the principles and practices of financial reporting
recognized by ASBO. Receiving the award 1s recoghition that the
school system has met the highest standards of excellence in school
financial reporting.

Both a (Certificate of Achievement (GFOA) and a Certificate of

Excellence (ASB0O)} are valid for a period of one year only. The St.
Tammany Parish Scheol Board has received both cextificates for the
last fourteen consecutive years. We believe our current comprehensive

annual financial report continues to conform to the program
requlrements of both organizations and we are submitting it to GFOA
and ASBO to determine its eligibility for each of the certificates.

Acknowledgments. The preparation o©of the comprehensive annual
financial report on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated
service of the entire staff of the Business Affairs Department. Each
membey of the department has our sincere appreciation for the
contributions made 1in the preparation of this report. In addition,
our dgratitude is extended to the Graphic Arts Department for their
valued assistance in the design of this report.
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In closing, without the leadership and suppert of the Members of

the School Board, both individually and collectively,
this report would not have been possible.

Respectfully submitted,

Lapnando§

preparation of

ﬁwaf’_"

Leonard P. Monteleone Rmnald J

ruso, CPA

Superintendent ir. of Bu51ness Affairs
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Independent Audifors’ Report

The Members of the
St. Tammany Parish School Board
Cavington, Louisiana:

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the St. Tammany Parish School
I Board (the School Board), as of and for the year ended Junc 30, 2002, which collectively

comprise the School Board’s basic {inancial statements as listed in the table of contents. These

hinancial statements are the responsibility of the School Board’s management. Qur responsibility
l 15 to express opinions on these tinancial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit 1 accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
requirc that we plan and perform the audit fo obfain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statcments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the School Board, as of June 30, 2002, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thercof for the year

then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
Amecrica.

As described in Note 1(C) to the basic financial statements, the School Board adopted the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State & Local Governments, and
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, in 2002.

1

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3
I through 10 and 55 through 61 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
I applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management

30th Floor - Energy Centre = 1100 Poydras Street. » New Orleans, LA 70163-3000 ¢+ Tel: 504.569.2978
2324 Severn Avenue, Suite A+ Metairie, LA 70001 - Te|:504.837.599q . FaxE 504_.834.3609*



regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
mformation. However, we did not audit the mformation and express no opinion to it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opintons on the financial statemcents that
collectively comprise the School Boeard’s basic financial statements. The accompanying other
supplementary information and statistical data on pages 62 through 116 are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and arc not a required part of the basic financial statcments. The
other supplecmentary information has been subjccted o the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The other supplementary
information included in the statistical data has not been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,-accordingly, we express no opinion on
them.

December 5, 2002
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2002

As management of the St. Tammany Parish School Board, we offer readers of the St.
Tammany Parish School Board’s financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the St. Tammany Parish School Board for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2002. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
transmittal, which can be found on pages vi through xv and the School Board’s financial
statements, which begins on page 1.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial highlights for the St. Tammany Parish School Board for fiscal vear ending
June 30, 2002 were:

¢ The School Board’s general fund expended nearly $206 million dollars on a
budgetary basis n fiscal year ending June 30, 2002 on education for St. Tammany
Parish. The majority of these funds, or 85 percent, nearly $176 million, was spent on
instructional and support programs with less than 15 percent spent on administration,
operation and maintenance of schools.

e Certified teachers received a salary increase of $3,060 in 2002 bringing the beginning
teacher salary to $29,098. Non-certificated employees received a $1,000 salary
increase. The net costs of this increase to the School Board was approximately $9
million.

e The total health and life insurance premiums paid by the School Board in 2002 were
$23,961,190 an increase of 24.9 percent from prior year.

» The School Board’s general fund revenues on a budgetary basis for fiscal year
ending June 30, 2002 were nearly $216 million. The largest sources of funds were
from the State of Louisitana Mimimum Foundation Program (3123 million), ad
valorem taxes ($34 million) and operating transfers from the sales tax funds ($50
million).

e The assets of the St. Tammany Parish School Board exceeded its liabilities at the
close of the year by $103 million, of this amount, $52.5 million must be used to meet
the School Board’s ongoing obligations to the citizen’s of St. Tammany Parish and its
creditors.

» The St. Tammany Parish School Board’s net assets increased by $11.1 million. The
majority of this increase was due to Louisiana’s minimum foundation program and
Federal operating grants.



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2002

e The St. Tammany Parish School Board’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $135 million, and increase of $36.4 million in comparison of

prior year. Most of this came from the issuance of $44 million in general obligation
bonds in February of 2002.

e The School Board expended $25 million on capital projects in 2002. The majority of
these expenditures were on construction of a new school and additions of classrooms.

e The School Board’s general fund budget had an operating surplus of $10.4 million.

e The School Board issued $47 million in new debt in 2002 a potion of the proceeds is
budgeted to be used on the $30 million in new capital projects budgeted for 2003 and
early retirement of $3.5 million in outstanding debt. As of June 30, 2002, the School
Board had $164 million in long-term debt outstanding.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the St. Tammany
Parish School Board’s basic financial statements. The St. Tammany Parish School
Board’s financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statement themselves.

Government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities (on pages 15 and 16, respectively); they provide information
about the financial position of the School Board as a whole and present a longer-term
view of the School Board’s finances. Fund Financial Statements start on page 17. For
governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the
short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also
report the School Board’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements
by providing information about the School Board’s most significant funds. The fiduciary
fund statements provide financial information about activities for which the School Board
acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

Our auditor has provided assurance in his independent auditors’ report, located
immediately preceding this management discussion and analysis (MD&A), that the Basic
Financial Statements are fairly stated. The auditor has also provided varying degrees of
assurance regarding the required supplementary information and supplementary
information. A user of this report should read the independent auditor’s report carefully
to ascertain the level of assurance being provided for each of the other parts in the
Financial Statements.
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2002

The School Board assumes full responsibility for the accuracy of the Introductory and
Statistical Sections as they were prepared without the association of the independent
auditors.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 28 through 54 of this report.

Other information

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
funds and internal service funds are presented immediately following the notes to the
financial statements. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be
found on pages 64 through 96 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Our analysis of the School Board as a whole begins on page 15. One of the most
important questions asked about the School Board’s finances is, “Is the School Board as a
whole better off or worse off as a result of the years activities?” The Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the School Board as a
whole and about activities in a way that helps answer the question. These statements
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to
the accounting used by most private-sector companies. Al of the year’s revenues and
expenses are take into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School Board’s net assets and changes in them. You can
think of the School Board’s net assets-the difference between assets and habilities-as one
way to measure the School Board’s financial health, or financial position. Over time,
increase or decreases in the School Board’s net assets are one indicator of whether its
financial health 1s improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other
nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the School Board’s property tax base

and the condition of the Schools, to assess the overall financial health of the School
Board.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, School Board’s can be
divided into two kinds of activities:

Governmental Activities — Most of the School Boards basic services are reported here,
including instruction, plant services, transportation, and food services. Property taxes,
sales taxes, Minimum Foundation Program (“MFP”") Funds, and state and federal grants
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2002

finance most of these activities. In the internal service funds, the School Board charges
fees to departments to help cover the costs of certain services it provides by being self
insured. The School Board’s general liability and workers’ compensation programs are
accounted for here.

Bustness-type activities — Business-type activities are those activities which are
conducted by the School Board whereas the fees/charges for those services provided are
mtended to be sutficient to reahize a profit. The School Board did not have any such
activities in fiscal years ending June 30, 2002 or 2001.

Our analysis below focuses on the net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets (Table 2)
of the School Board’s governmental activities.

TABLE 1
SUMMARY OF NET ASSETS
(in thousands)
(Governmental
Activities
2002 2001
Assets:
Current and other assets $164.316 $128,996
Capital Assets 128.378 117.838
Total Assets 292,694 246,334
Liabilitics:
Long-term debt outstanding 164,207 122,407
Other liabilities 25,616 32.639
Total Liabihties 189,823 135,046
Net Assets:
Invested 1n capital assets,
net of debt 28,978 29.905
Restricted 21,415 17,958
Unrestricted 52,479 43,925
Total Net Assets $102.872 $ 91,788

"

In fiscal year ending June 30, 2002, the School Board issued $47 million in general
obligation bonds for the purpose of adding/building new schools and adding additional
classrooms to existing schools. The increase in current assets and other assets, long-term
debt outstanding, and net assets can largely be attributed to the proceeds from this bond
Issuance.
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TABLE 2
SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
(in Thousands)
Governmental
Activities
2002 20061
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 3,734 $ 3.659
(Operating grants and contributions 20,438 15,817
Capital grants and contributions 752 715
General revenues:
Propersty taxes 48,344 45,507
Sales taxces 52.848 48,796
State Equalization (MEFP) 124.341 117,742
Other general revenues 11,779 15.702
Total revenuces 262236 2479338
Program expenses
Regular programs 87,254 84,469
Special education programs 43,764 38,210
Vocational education 4.624 4,379
Other instructional programs 8,683 6,951
Special programs 4,121 3.818
Adult education programs 561 437
Pupil support 9,806 8.818
Instructional staff support 9.810 8,794
Cieneral administration 4 272 3.847
School administration 12,747 11,116
Business administration 1,647 1,637
Operation and maintenance of plant 18,261 17,583
Pupil transportation 15,138 13.446
Central services 2368 1.948
Food services 13,241 12,273
Community services programs Q95 8§93
Uinallocated depreciation cxpense 7,641 6,481
Interest on long-term debt 6,242 6,625
Total Expenses 251,175 231,725
Tncrease in net assets £ 11,061 $ 16,213

Revenues inercased 5.8 percent or approximately $14,298.000. The largest increases
were sales and ad valorem (property) (axes, fcderal and state grants and MIFP money.
Sales taxes increased from prior year at a rate of approximately 8.3 percent which 1s a
result of economic growth in St. Tammany Parish. New home construction and nsing
property values resulted in a 6.2 percent increase 1n ad valorem tax revenues. Along with
cconomic prosperity came an influx of additional residents and students.
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The student enrollment continued to increase from 32,680 students in 2001 to 32,870
students 1n 2002 along with MIP tunding for those additional students. In addition, the
School Board received approximately $4.2 million in additional federal and state grants
than in prior ycars.

Expenditures increased 8.4 Percent or approximately $19.450,000 1n 2002, which was
slightly higher than revenues grew for the samce period.  After capital expenditures, the
sceond largest increases were In instructional programs as part of the School Boards plan
to reduce classroom size and enhance student achievement. Salary and benefits cost
account for the vast majority of costs for the School Board. 'The increase in instructional
programs as well as other programs is mainly attribuied to increasc in salaries across the
board funded by lucal and state sources and additional teachers and support staff hired for
the reasons stated above. Higher fucel costs resulted in higher pupil transportation costs.

REPORTING THE SCHOOL BOARD’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

The St. Tammany Parish School Board uses fund accounting to ¢nsure and demonstrate
compliance with Iinance-related legal requirements.

Our analysis of the School Board’s major funds begins on page 55. The fund financial
statements begin on page 17 and provide detailed information about the most significant
funds — not the School Board as a whole. Some {unds are required to be established by
State law or by bond covenants. However, the School Board establishes other funds to
help it control and manage financial resources for particular purposcs or to demonstrate
that it is meeling legal responsibilitics for using certain taxcs, grants, and other money.

The School Board’s three types of funds — governmental, propriclary and fiduciary funds
— use ditferent accounting approaches.

Governmental Funds — most of the School boards basic services are reported in the
governmental funds, which focus on how moncy flows into and out ol these funds and
the balances lcft at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported
using modificd accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets
that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the School Board's general government operations and the
basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether
there are more or {ewer {inancial resources that can be spent in the near [uture to finance
the School Board’s programs. We describe the relationship (or ditferences) between
governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Asscts and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation on pages 19 and 22.
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The School Board’s governmental funds reported combined ending {und balances of
$134,999,075. and incrcasc of $36.364.396 in comparison with the prior ycar. The
components of this increasc 1s desceribed below.

The general [und balance increased by $11.324,681 from prior year to $56,886,107 as of
June 30, 2002. General fund expenditures before transfers and other financing uses
increased 5.9 percent, or $11.2 million from prior year. General fund revenue belore
transfers and other fimancing sources increascd only 4.3 percent, or $6.8 million.
Operating transters, mostly from the sales tax funds incrcascd $6.4 mallion from 2001.
The nearly 9 pereent increase 1n sales tax revenuc was much higher than originally
budgeted.

Capital project fund balance incrcased $25,442,008 1n the current year, This increase was
a result of $47.4 million in general obligation debt 1ssued in 2002 offset by $22.8 million
in expenditures on capital assets and construction and $3.4 million for carly
extinguishment of debt.

The special revenue [unds had a decrease in fund balance ol $2.021,968 mostly due to the
lransicr of prior year surpluscs 1 the 1977 sales tax fund to the General fund.

The debt serviee funds saw a slight increase of $1,679,098 in 2002 up from $10,305,666
in 2001 due to both lower annual debt service payments and slightly higher ad valorem
fax collecttons. The $11.984,764 1n fund balance in the debt service funds is reserved for
[uture debt service payments,

Proprietary I'unds — When the School Board charges tor the services it provides -
whether to outside sources or to other units of the School Board — these scrvices are
generally reported in proprietary [unds. Proprietary funds arc reported in the same way
that all activities are reported 1n the Statement of Net Asscts and Statement of Activities.
The School Board maintains two internal service (proprictary) funds. An internal service
fund accumulates and allocates costs internally among the School Board’s various
functions. The School Board maintains separatc internal service funds to account for its
self-insured portion of ils general liability and employee workers™ compensation
programs. Because the services provided in both of these funds benefit governmental
rather than business-typc functions, they have been included as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements.
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Net asscts in the proprictary funds declined $147.388 Irom the prior year to $3,701.837 in
2002, The dechine in the Workers™ Compensation Ffund net assets of $834,566 was
mainly atiributed to administrative costs for a new third party administer for the School
Board’s workers® compensation claims and settling of older claims in 2002, ‘The risk
management fund actually had an increase of in net asscts of $687,178 bccausc of
reduced claims.

Fiduciary Funds - ‘The School Boeard is trustee, or fiduciary, for its student activily funds
that are under the control and administration ol the Board. AN of the School Board’s
fiduciary activities are reported in the Statement of IMiduciary Nel Assets and the
Siatement of Changes in Net Assets on pages 26 and 27 of this section. These funds are
not available to the School Board to finance its operations, and therefore not included 1n
the government-wide financial statements. The School Board 1s responsible for ensuring
that the assets reported by these [unds arc used for their intended purposcs.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Mifterences between the original budget and the final amended budget were relatively
minor ($31.792 increase in budgctary fund balance) and can be brietly summarized as
follows:

$2.1 million increase in projected revenues as follows:

e $1.1 million increase in minimum foundation program

e $1.2 million decrease in investment tnterest

o $1.4 million increase in sales tax revenue

e $.3 million increase 1n ad valorem taxes

e $.3 million increase due to one time salary supplement for non-certificated personnel
o $.2 million increase in miscellancous other revenues

32.1 million increuse in projected expenditures as follows:

e $.9 million increase in salaries and benefits funded through the minimum foundation program
and local sources

$.6 million increase in equipment and supplies expenditures

$.6 million increase tn textbook expenditures

$.3 million increase in software expenditures

$.3 million decrease in adminsstrative miscellaneous expenditures

The Board’s General Fund balance of $55,886.107 rceported on pages 17 through 18
differs from the General Fund's budgetary fund balance of $55,413,409 reported in the
budgetary comparison schedule on page 56, This is principally because the budgetary
tund balance includes both transfers in and bond procceds as a source ot funds available
for appropriation and transiers out and repayment of debt as a charge to appropriations,
while. the statement of aclivities does not.

10
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2002, the School Board invested in broad range of capital assets, incltuding
land, school facilitics. and equipment totaling $128 million. (See Table 4 below) The net
incrcasc (including additions and deductions) in capital assets in 2002 was $10.5 million,
or 8.9 percent, over last year.

TABLE 4
CAPITAL ASSETS AT YEAR-END
(Net of Depreciation, in Thousands)

Governmental
Activilies
2002 2001
Land P 7.603 $ 7427
Buildings & Improvements 101,926 83,451
F.quipment 4,519 3,026
Construclion m progress 14,330 20,934
Total 5128378 SE17,838
Major additions in 2002 include:
Construction of a ncw school in the Mundeville area $ 6,845,000
Construction of classroom additions througout the Parish $ 16,221,000
Renovation of athletic facilittes in the Slidell area $ 749,000
Purchase of vacant land for the purpose of constructing a
New school in the Mandeville area $ 174,000
Misccellancous additions/renovations throughout the Pansh $ 1.002.000
Totals $ 24,991,000

The School Board's fiscal year 2003 budget for capital projects 1s $30 million, principally
for classroom additions. schoo!l renovations. science labs, athletic {facilities and
construction of a new central office building. The School Board issued $47 million in
new debt in 2002 to finance these projects. More detailed information about the School
Board’s capital assets is presented in Note 7 to the financial statements.

11
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L.ong-term Debt

As of Junc 30, 2002, the School Board had $163.5 million in Jong-term debt outstanding
an increase of $35.050.000 or 27.2 percent over the amount of June 30, 2001 — as shown

i lable 5.

TABLE 5
OUTSTANDING DEBT AT YEAR-END
(in Thousands)

Governmental
Activities
2002 2001
(;eneral obligation bonds £143.820 $106,550
{hucked by the School
Board)

Revenue bonds and notes
{(backed by specitic tax and
fee revenue) ¥ &,885 L 10,335
Certificates of Indebtedness
(hacked by specific tax and

fee revenue) $ 835 § 1.625
Compensated Absences $ 10,667 $ 10,001
Totals $164,207 5128511

The School Board issued $47.4million in new general obligation debt in 2002 mainly to
linance the construction and maintenance of facilities. In addition, to improve cash flow
and to take advantage of lower interest rales, the School Board defeased nearly $3.6
million of general obligation debt by issuing refunding bonds. By refinancing the debt,
the School Board will save $1.2 million in principle and interest over the next 10 years.

Subsequent 1o year-end, the School Board issued an additional $4 million in new debt to
refinance the remaining balance of the 1992, $11 million sales tax bonds. The School
Board expects to realize an additional savings of approximately $300,000 by refinancing
this debt over the remaining four years.

The School Board’s bond rating was increased in 2002 to AAA by Standard & Poors.
The State constitution limits the amount of general obligation debt that the School Board
can issue to 35 percent of the assessed value of all taxable property within the school
district. The School Board’s outstanding general obligation debt of $143.8 million is
significantly below the current $324 miltlion limit.

12
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The School Board initiated a risk management program for general hability and workers’
compensation in prior ycars. The School Board purchases commercial insurance for
claims in excess of coverage provided through its self-insurance funds. The School
Board had $1.8 nnllion in claims and judgments outstanding for fiscal ycar ending June
30, 2002 and in 2001. Other obligations include acerued vacation pay and sick leave.
Morc detailed information about the School Board™s long-term liabilitics is presented n
Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statcments.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS

The following are currently known St. Tammany Parish economic factors considered into
the 2002-03 fiscal year:

o Sales taxes are expected to continue to increase for St, Tammany Parish, as the Parish
remains one ot the wealthiest parishes in the State of Lowsiana.

e St. Tammany Parish School Board student attendance s expected to continue o
increase [or the next couple of years at a rate sumlar to the recent past years.

o Pressure to increase teacher salaries to keep up with the Southern Average continues
and 15 hikely that salary cost will increase accordingly.

At the time thesc financial statements were preparcd and audited, the School Board was
aware of the following circumstances that could significantly atiect the School Board's
financtal health in the future:

e Sales taxes had increased at approximately 6 percent above fiscal year ended June 30,
2002 levels,

o State of Louistana Housc Bill 31 (The Stelly Plan) was voted into law on November
5, 2002 which calls for a reduction in state sales taxes in exchange for an increase in
l.outsiana income taxes. The effect if any of this new law on local school districts
such as St. Tammany arc not yet known.

e The unofficial student count in Qctober 2002 for fiscal year ending June 30, 2003
showed an increase of 1,084 1n student attendance.

e The School Board issucd $4 million in general obligation bonds i October 2002 to
refinance the remaining balance on $11 million in general obligation bonds issued 1n
1992. The savings on this refinancing is expected to be around $300.,000.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the St. Tamumany Parish School Board’s
budget for the 2002-03 fiscal year.
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2002

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report 1s designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors
with a pencral overview of the School Board’s finances and to show the School Board's
accountability for the money il receives. It you have questions about this report or need
additional financial information, contact Mr. Ronald J. Caruso, Director of Business
Services at the St. Tammany Parish Public School System. P.O. Box 940. Covington, 1LA
70434-0940 or by calling (985) 898-3217 during regular business hours, Monday through
Friday, from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., central standard time.
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

GOVERNMENT-WIDE
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ST TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Statement A
Covington, Louisiana

Statement of Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

GOVERNMENAL
ACTIVITIES
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 45,547,739
Invetments 44 421 300
Receivables (Met):
Taxes:
Ad valorem 856,177
Sales and use 4,487 574
Intergovernmental :
Federal 1,992,272
State 1,524,605
Other Receivables:

Other 359,107
Inventory 320,068
Restricted cash and cash equivilents 9,246,001
Restricted investments 55,561,509
Capital assets:

Land 7,602,890

Capital assets, net of depreciation 120,775,238
TOTAL ASSETS 292,694,480
LIABILITIES
Accounts, salaries and other payables 22,805,896
Deferred revenue 1,101,829
Claims and judgments 1,673,495
Other 34,120
Long-term liabilities;

Due within one year 9,795,000

Due in more than one year 154,412,456
TOTAL LIABILITIES 189,822,896
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 28,978,182
Restricted for:

Maintenance and operations 9,466,049
Debt Service 11,948,764
Unrestricted 52,478,689
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 102,871,584

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Statement B
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Statement of Activites
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Net (Expense)
Operating Capitai Revenue and
Charges Grants and Grants and Changes in
Expenses For Services Contributions Contributions Net Assets
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Govemnmenial Activities:
instruction:
Regular Programs $87,253,791 $208,698 $2,624.450 30 ($84,420,643)
Speciat Education Programs 43,764,346 0 3,387,177 0 (40,377,169)
Vocational Educational Programs 4,624 007 0 296,216 0 (4,327,791)
Other Instructional Programs 8,683,473 0 1,148,646 0 {7,.534,821)
Special Programs 4,121,088 0 3,739,247 0 (381,841)
Adult Educational Programs 561,205 0 279,461 0 (281,744)
Support Servicas:
Pupil Support 9,805,615 0 993,897 0 (8,811,718)
Instructional Staff Support 9,809,344 0 2,101,745 0 (7,707,599)
General Administration 4,271,971 0 9,591 0 (4,262,380)
Schoal Administration 12,747,955 0 466,969 0 (12,260,986)
Business Administration 1,646,685 0 0 D (1,646,682)
Operation and Maintenance of Planf 18,261,133 0 195,412 0 (18,065,721)
Pupit Transportation 15,137,579 0 433,314 Q {14,704,265)
Central Services 2,367,639 0 0 0 (2,367,639)
Tood Senvices 13,241,043 2,746 381 4761883 752,333 (4,980,446}
Unallocated depreciation on Facilities 7,641,343 f] 0 0 (7 641,343)
Community Service Programs 894,973 178,694 0 0 (216,279)
Interest on Long-term Debt 6,242,420 0 0 0 (6.242,420)
Total Governimental Aclivifios $251,175,610 $3,733.773 __$-20.43.B.Dﬂﬂ $752 333 §$226|251=49$!
Goeneral Revenues:
Taxes:
Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes $48,344,307
Salas and Use Taxes 52 847,766
State Revenue Sharing 1,799,322
Grants and Contributions not Restricted to Specific Programs-
Mintmum Foundation Program 124,341,219
Interest and Investment Eamings 3,499,992
Miscellaneous 6,479,498
Total General Revenuss 237.312,107
Changes in Nel Assets 11,060,611
Net Assets, Baginning as restated 91,810,973
Net Assets, Ending $102,871,584

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louislana

Govemnmmental Funds - Balance Sheet
June 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2001

Major
__Fund Types
1966 Sales 1977 Sales $44 Million
(General Tax Fund Tax Fund Construction
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $25,360,194 $5,909 $57,840 $156,919
{nvastments 43,261,242 43,720,753
Receivables:
Taxes:
Ad valorem 601,586
Sales and use 2,243,787 2.243,787
Intergovernmentalk:
Federal 53,526
State 691,806
Other 343,224 794 794
Due from other funds 7,763,450 7,827
Inventory
Total Assets $78,075,128 $2,250,490 $2.310,248 $43.877,672
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Salaries and wages payable $16,703,020
Payroll deductions and withhoidings payable 2,878,977
Accounts payable 907,872 $25.804 $25,804 $190
Coantracts and retainages payable
Due to other funds 428,550 2,218,778 2,218,778
Other liabilities 34,120
Defermred revenues 236,482
Total Liabilities 21,189,027 2244582 2.244 582 190
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Reserved for encumbrances 1,472,698 70,418
Reserved for inventory
Reserved for debt service
Unreserved, undesignated 55,413,409 5,008 65,666 43,107,064
Total Fund Balance 56,886,107 5908 65,666 43,877,482
Total Liabitities and Fund Balances M _ig_z_sw M Mg_

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

17




+55 Million
Construction

$2.319,789
11.630.710

" $13,050.499

I e ———p———p————

$232, 552
1,096,133

1,328,685

6,626,271

5.995,543
12,621,814

$13.950,499

Non-Major
Fund Types

Other
Governmental

$22,562,738
315,859

254 591

1,938,746
832,799
4,287
548,382
320.068

_ $26,777.470

$413,451
463,250
3,493,224
0

865,447

5,235,372

596,662
94,329
11,948,764
8.902.343

21,042,098

$26.777,470

Statement C

Totals
(Memorandum Only)
2002 _____ 2001

$50,463,389 $80,842,807
98,928,664 32,457 195
856 177 744,611
4,487,574 4,154,006
1,992,272 1,845,470
1,924,605 2,804 369
349,099 245,266
8,319,659 8,657,629
320,068 277,781

$167,241,507

_ $132,029,134

$16,703,020 $15,464,231
2,878,977 929,673
1,605,673 6,030,336
1,559,383 1,508,089
8,359,330 8,657,629
34,120 46,298
1,101,929 758,199
32,042,432 33,354,455
9,466,049 7,652,530
94,329 83,252
11,948,764 10,305,666
113,489,933 80,593,231
134.899,075 =~ 98,634,679

$167,241, 507

$132,029,134

L —— ]
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Statement D
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2002

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 134,999,075

The cost of capital assets (land, buildings, furniture and equipment) purchased
on constructed is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, The
Statement of Net Assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the
School Board as a whole. The costs of those assets allocated aver their
estimated useful lives (as depreciation expense) to the various programs
reported as governmental activities in the Statement of Activities. Because
depreciation expense does not affect financial resources, it is not reported in
governmental funds.

Cost of capital assets $ 307,633,626
Accumuiated depreciation (179,255 498)
128,378,128
Elimination of interfund assets and liabilities
Interfund assets $ (8,319,659)
Iinterfund liabilities 8.359 330
39,671
Net assets of the internal service fund reported as proprietary fund type in the
fund financial statement but included as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statement less interfunds eliminated in the
consolidation into the governmental activities.
Total net assets $ 3,701,837
Interfund liabilities 14,939
Interfund assets (54.,610)
3,662,166
L ong-term habilities applicable to the School Board's governmental activities
are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported
as fund labilities. All Liabilities — both current and long-term — are reported in
the Statement of Net Assets.
Balance at June 30, 2002 are:
Bonds payable $ (153,540,000)
Compensated absences (10.667 456)
(164,207,456)
Net assets — governmental activities d 102,871,584

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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5T. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Govemnmental Funds
Statoment of Revenuas, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended Juno 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for the Yoar Ended June 30, 2001

Major
Fund Typss
1968 Salas 1977 Sales $44 Millan $55 Million
General Tax Fund Tax Fund Conslnction Constriction
RevanLes
Local sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem $34 245594
Salas and use $26.423,683 $26,423,883
Rentals, teases, and royalties
Tuition 206,698
Eamings on mvestments 1,860,064 48,147 50,703 $197,797 $589.135
Food sacvice
Qther 674,423
State sources:
Equiaization 123,157.701
Contributions to
Taachars' Ratirement 114,847
Ravenue sharng 1,789,322
Professional improvement Program §85,400
Other 1,347,704
Fedaral sources 583,265
Total Reverues $184 877,027 $26,473,030 $26 474 586 $197.797 $589,136
Expenddures
Current.
Instmaction:
Ragular Ed programs 81623426
Special Ed programs 39304 082
Vocational Ed programs 4,027,845
Othar mstructional programs 7,160,666
Special programs 422 580
Adull Ed programs 471662
Suppart services:
Pupil support 8,431,597
nstructional staff suppart 7.463,799
General administration 3,027,243 04,083 304 083 26617
Schooi administration 11,896,939
Business administration 1,682,030
Operation and maintenance of plant 17,333,212
Pupil transporiation 14,270,323
Central sorvices 2 208,452
Food service 1.641.058
Communily Service programs 42 604
Facilities acquisition and construction 197,401 173297 15,797,762
Debt service’
Issuance costs
Principal ratirement
Intarest and bank charges 120,401
Total Expenditures 201,105,218 304 083 304,083 320,315 15,797,752
Excaess (Deficiency) of Revenues
QOvear Expanditiuras . {36.228,192] 26,168,947 26,170,503 (122,518} 15,208,616
Other Fnancing Sourcas (LUses)
Payment to escrow agent from bond proceeds
Accrued interest on issued bonds
Proceads from bonds 44 (00,000
Operating transfers n 51,276,981 51,930
Operaling transfers out (3.743,091) (26, 168,040) {28,193.043)
Total Other Financmng Sources {Usas) 47 533,850 (26,168.040) (28,141,113} 44 (00,000 0
Excess {Deficioncy) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sowrces Over Expenditures
And Qther Fmancing Uses 11,305,698 907 {1,970,610) 43 B77,482 {15,208,615)
fund Balances, Begirming of Year (as restated) B 45 580,409 5.002 2036 277 0 27,830,430
Fund Balances, End of Year $56. 886,107 $5,900 $65 667 $43 877 482 $12.621.814

The notas o the financial statemenls are an integral part of this slatement
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Statement E

(Memorandum Only)

Non-major
Fund Types
Olhor
(zovernmental 2002
$14 088,713 348,344 307
h2,847 766
3.120 3,420
778,694 987,392
GOKL B27 3,356,674
2746 381 2.746, 381
112,957 787 380
1.183 518 124,341,219
114,847
1,799,322
885,409
1,720,788 3,068.492
18,875 565 19,458 830
340129853 $208.741.439
2,268,671 83,892,097
3028433 42 332 515
206,216 4 324 161
1,148 G4/ 8,309,312
3,498,954 3,921,534
od 249 525911
993 897 0,425 494
2 019357 9. 483,156
A0 745 4 121,871
A6 569 12 363,508
&) 1,582,030
195 412 17,528,724
433,314 14,703 637
0 2,208,452
11,045 963 12,687 021
921,761 964 365
5,639 819 22,808,299
13.335 13.33%5
8,965,000 8,965,000
6, 106.390 6,226, 791
48 556 181 266 387 813
{8,426 .398) (7 646,174)
(3,417 .294) (3,417 .294)
17,866 17,866
3,410.000 47,410,000
7,722,650 59,051,561
__{947.387) __{59,051,561)
_ B,7685,835 44.010,572
(1,640,463} 36,364,398
23,182 561 98 634,679
$21,542.098 $1 34!999,0??

2001

$45,507 454
48,795,600
4,200
965,985
7,007,183
2,688,320
761,263

117,742 209

111,340
1,802,063
929,037
2,064,213
15,285,933

$244,564 805

o — e et e

81,795,569
37,450,483
4.417.904
6,721,294
3,643,253
422 939

8,574,645
8,604,165
3,764,886
10,914,896
1,586,630
17,002,972
13,239,045
1,813,426
11,046,216
856,772
22 391,824

)
9,065,000
6,624 593

250626 512

(6061,708)

0

1)

0

52,138,803
(52,138,803}

Q

{6,061,708)

104,696,387

$98 634 679

.m
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Statement F

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Activities
June 30, 2002

Total net changes in fund balances — governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful

lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeds capital
outlays in the project.

Capital outlays $20,578,306
Depreciation expanse {10,038,289)

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to govemmental funds, but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of bond
principal and capital leases is expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. This is the amount that
proceeds received exceeded repayments.

In the Statement of Activities, ceriain operating expenses-compensated absences are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,
expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used
(essentially, the amounts actually paid). This year, vacation and sick time earned
($1,097,999) exceeded the amounts used ($431,583) by $666,416.

All revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets (deficits) of the internal service
fund are reported as proprietary fund type in the fund financial statement but included as
governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial staterment.

Net income (loss)

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 10,540,017

$ (35.,030,000)

$ (666,416)
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Statement G
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana
Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Service Fund
Combined Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2001
2002 2001

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $5,384,496 $5,287,765

Accounts receivable 10,008 359,560

Due from other funds 54 610
Total Assets $5,449,114 $5.647,331
| iabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $58,843 $19,248

Due to other funds 14,939

Liability for

self-insurance losses 1,067,919 878,858

Claims liability 605,576 900,000
Total Liabilities $1,747,277 $1,798,106
Net Assets
Restricted for employee benefits (as restated) $596,743 $1,431,309
Unrestricted 3,105,094 2,417,916
Total Net Assets (as restated) $3,701,837 $3,849,225
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $5,449,114 $5,647,331

The notes to the financial statements are an intregal part of this statement.
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Operating Revenues
Employer contributions
Insurance proceeds

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Administrative
Contractual services
Premium payments
Benefit Payments
Claims
Increase (Decrease) in provision for
self-insurance losses

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income {Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues
Earnings on investments

Changes in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Total Net Assets - End of Year

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Service Funds
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses , and
Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2001

The notes to the financial statements are an intregal part of this statement
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2002

$3,208,245
125,350

Statement H

2001

$3,045,880
52,065

3,333,595

3,097,945

108,992
312,549
1,074,623
1,930,360
303.143

(105,363)

3,624,304

198,933
158,933
843,459
1,305,470
562,063

(17,836)

(290,709)

143,321

2,892,089

{147,388)

205,856

298,699

3,849,225

504,555

33,701,837

3,344,670

$3,849,225




Statement |

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Service Funds
Combined Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals For June 30, 2001

2002 2091 .
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash receipts from:
Employer contributions $3,208,245 $2,749,233
Insurance proceeds 125,350 52,065
Cash payments for:
Benefits and claims (1,884,021) (1,.924,461)
Insurance premiums (1,074,623) (843,459)
Other (421,541) (198,933)
Net Cash Provided (Used) By
QOperating Activities (46,590) (165,555)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Earnings on investments 143,321 339,177
Net increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivilents 96,731 173,622
Cash and Cash Equivilents at
Beginning of Year 5,287,765 5,114,143
Cash and Cash Equivilents at
End of Year $5,384,496 $5,287,765

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (l0ss) ($290,709) $205,856
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash used by operating activities:
Decrease in provision for
self insurance losses {(105,363) (314,483)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables 294 948 69,398
Increase {decrease) in payables 54,534 (126,326)
Decrease in deferred revenue
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities m._m(l'.';lil-*-lﬁ,5'9(}) ($165,555)

The notes ta the financial statements are an intregal part of this statement.
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Fiduciary Fund

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - School Activity Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

With Comparatives Totals for June 30, 2001

Statement J

2001

$1,633,510
2,032,436

$3,665,946

$3,665,046

2002

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $1.,580 422

Investments 2.383,753
Total Assets $3,974,175
Liabilities

Deposits due others $3,974,175
Total Liabilities $3,974,175

The notes to the financial statements are an intragal part of this statement
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Statement K
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana
Fiduciaty Fund
Statement of Changes in Net Assets - School Activity Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2002
Balance Balance
June 30, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002
ASSETS .
Cash and cash equivalents $1.633,510 $8,910,115 $8,953,203 $1,590,422
[nvestments 2,032,436 1,224,126 872,809 2,383,753
TOTAL ASSETS $3,665,946 10,134,241 9826,012 3,974,175
LIABILITIES
Deposits due others _$3,665,946 $10,134,241 $9,826,012 $3,974,175

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity
Basis of Presentation-Fund Accounting
Basis of Accounting/Mcasurement Focus
. Budget Practices
Eincumbrances
Cash, Cash FEquivalents and Investments
Intergovernmental Receivables
Short-Term Interfund Reccivablcs/Payables
Inventory
Capital Assets
Long-Term Obligations
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Claims and Judgements
Comparative Data and Total Columns on Combined Statements
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statcments of the St. Tammany Parish School Bourd have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) 1s the acceptled standard-setting body {or establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The St. Tammany Parish School Board (School Board) was created by Loulsiana Revised Statute
(LRS) 17:51 for the purpose of providing public education for the children within St. Tammany
Parish, Louisiana. The School Board is authorized by LRS 17:81 to establish polictes and
rcgulations for its own government consistent with the laws of the State of T.ouisiana and the
regulations of the Louisiana Board of Ilementary and Secondary Education. 'The School Board
15 authorized to establish public schools as it deems necessary, o provide adequatc school
{acilities for the children of the parish, to determine the number of teachers to be employed, and
to determine local supplement to their salaries. Thc School Board 1s comprised of 15 members
who are clecled from 15 districts for concurrent terms of four years expiring in Dececmber 2002.

The School Board operates 51 schools within the parish with a tolal enrollment of approximately
32,900 pupils. In conjunction with the regular cducational programs, some of these schools offer
spectal education and/or adult education programs. Additionally, the School Board provides
transportation and school food scrvices for the students.

For financial reporting purposes, the School Board includes all funds and activities for which the
School Board exercises financial accountability. The School Board members are elected by the
public, have decision-making authority, the power to designate management, the ability to
significantly influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. Certain units of
local government, over which the School Board exercises no financial accountability, such as the
parish council, other independently clected parish officials, and municipalities within the parish,
are excluded from the financial statements. These units of government are considered separate
reporting entities and issue financial statements separate from that of the School Board. The
School Board 1s not a component unit of any other entity and does not have any component units
that require inclusion in the financial statements.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION-IFUND ACCOUNTING

The accounts of the School Board are organized on the basis of funds, cach of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund arc accounted for with a
scparate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues,
and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Revenues are accounted for in these individual
funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities arc controlled. The funds presented in the financial statements arc described as
follows:

Governmental Fund Types:

Governmental funds are those through which most povernmental functions of the School Board
arc financed.  ‘The acquisition, use and balances of the School Board's expendable financial
resources and the related liabilities (except those accounted for in the proprietary funds) are
accounled for through governmental funds. The measuremcnt focus is upon determination of
changes in financial position, rather than upon net income determination. The following are the
School Board's povernmental fund types:

General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School Board. It accounts for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. These funds account for the revenues and
expenditures related to federal, state and local grant and entitlement programs and special district
funds cstablished for various educational objectives.

Debt Service Funds

Debt Service Funds, established to meet requirements of bond ordinances, are used to account for

the accumulation of resources for and the payment of long-term debt principal, interest, and
related costs.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

Capital Projects Funds
Capital Projects I'unds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities (other (han those {inanced by the proprietary funds). Scparate capital

project tunds are maintained to account for the proceeds of major gencral obligation bonds and other
financing proceeds.

Proprictary Fund T'ype:

Proprietary FFunds are used to account for the School Board's ongoing organizations and activities
that ar¢ similar to those often found in the private sector.  The measurement focus is upon
determination of net income. The School Board’s proprietary fund type 1s limited to Internal Service
tunds as follows:

Internal Service [F'unds

The Internal Service 'unds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the
payment of benefits by the School Board's self-insurance programs. The School Board maintains
the following self-insurance funds:

Workers' Compensation Fund - This fund is used to account for the payment of workers'
compensation benefits.

Risk Management Fund - This fund is used to account for general hability, which is fully
insured for FYE June 30, 2002 with a deductible of $150,000 per occurrence, and property

damage, which is fully insured for FYE June 30, 2002 with a deductible of $150,000 per
oceurrence.,

Fund revenues are derived from government allocations. These revenues are planned to match: (1)
expenses of insurance premiums in excess of self-insurance amounts; (2) estimated claim losses
resulting from self-insurance programs which include estimated liabilities for claims incurred but not
yet reported at year end, and (3) operating expenses. Non-operating income includes interests
Income.

Fiduciary Fund Type:

Fiduciary Funds arc used to account for assets held by the School Board in a trustee or agency
capacity. The School Board maintains one fiduciary fund type, an agency fund. The agency fund is
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of
operations.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

Agency Fund

The School Board maintains one agency fund, the School Activity Agency Fund, which accounts for
assets held by the Board as an agent for the individual schools and school orgamizations.

C. BASIS O ACCOUNTING/MEASUREMENT FOCUS

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) ‘The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement
of Activities displays information about the reporting government as a whole. Fiduciary funds arc
nol included in the GWFS. Fiduciary funds are rcported only in the Statement of Fiduciary Net
Assets and the Statement of Changes in Net Assets at the fund financial statement level.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activitics was prepared using the economic
resources measurecment focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenucs, expenses, gains, losses,
asscts and liabilities resulting from the exchange and cxchange-like transactions arc recogmzed when
the cxchange takes place. Revenues. expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilitics resulting from
noncxchange transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASDB Statement
No. 33 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Noncexchange Transactions.™

Internal Activities The workers’ compensation and risk management funds provide services to the
sovernmental funds. Accordingly, these funds were rolled up into the governmental activities.
Pursuant to GASB 34, as much as possible, the internal activities have been ehiniinated 1n order to
avoid the “grossing-up™ eflect of a straight inclusion.

Program Revenues Program revenues include: 1) charges for scrvices provided, 2) operating grants
and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions; program revenues reduce the cost of the
function to be financed from the School Board’s general revenues. Charges for services are
primarily derived from food sales. Operating grants and contributions consist of the many
educational grants received from the federal and stale government.

Allocation of indirect expenses The School Board reports all direct expenscs by function in the
Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those that arc clearly identitiable with a function.
Depreciation expense is specifically identified by function and is included in the dircct expense of
cach function. Intcrest on general long-term debt is considered an indircct expense and is reported
separately in the Statement of Activities. Other indirect cxpenses arc not allocated.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statcments
June 30, 2002

Fund Financial Statcments (FES)

Fund financial statcments report detailed information about thc School Board. The focus of
povernmental and enterprise fund financial statcments is on major funds rather than reporting funds
by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and
presented in a single column. The internal service funds are presented in a single column on the face
of the proprietary fund statements.

Governmental I'unds

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. Al governmenial fund types are accounted for using a current fmancial resources
measurement focus.  With this measurement focus, only current assets and current habilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of thesce funds present increases
(i.e.. revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (1.e., expenditures and other financing
uses) in net current asscts.

The proprictary fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurcment focus.
With this mcasurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of this fund
Lype arc included on the balance sheet.

The School Board applies all applicable Financial Accounting Standards [Board (FASB)
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting its proprietary
fund operations unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

The governmental and fiduciary fund types (agency fund) are reported in the {inancial statements on
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basts, revenues are recorded
when they become both measurable and available. Available means expected to be collected within
two months for property taxes. Revenues not considered available are recorded as deferred revenues.
The following practices in recording revenues and expenditures have been used for the govemmental

funds.

Revenucs
Federal and state entitlements, which include state equalization and state revenue sharing, are
recorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid when available and measurable. Federal and state grants which

are restricted as to the purpose of the expenditures are recorded when the reimbursable expenditures

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

have been made. Ad valorem taxes are recorded in the year the taxes are due and payable. Ad
valorem taxes are asscssed on a calendar year basis, based on the assessed valuc on January 1,
become due on November 15 of each year, and become delinquent on December 31. An enforceable
lien atlaches to the property as of November 15. The taxes were levied by the School Board on May
11, 2000. However, before the taxes can be collected, the tax rolls must be submitted to the State
Tax Commission for approval. The taxes are generally collected in December. January, and
February of the fiscal year. Property tax revenues are accrucd at [iscal year cnd 1o the extent that
they have been collected and are unremilted by the St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector's Office. Such
amounts are mecasurable and available to finance current operations.  Intercst income on time
deposits and revenues from rentals, leases, and royalties are recorded when camed. Sales and use
tax revenues are recorded in the month in which the School Board considers them available to
[inance current year obligations and are collected by the St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector.
Substantially all other revenues are recorded when received.

lixpenditures

Salartes are recorded as expenditures when incurred.  Nine-month employee salanes are incurred
over a nine-month period but paid over a twelve-month period. Compensated absences are
recognized as expenditures when leave is actually taken or when employees (or heirs) are paid for
accrucd leave upon retircment or death, whilc the cost of earned leave privileges not requiring
current resources is recorded in the general long-term debt account group. Commitments under
construction contracts are recognized as cxpenditures when earned by the contractor. Principal and
interest on general long-term obligations are not recognized until due.  All other expenditures are
generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability 1s
incurred.

The proprietary fund type is reported in the financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues arise when resources are received before the School Board has a legal claim to
them, such as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures,
when tuition is received in advance of the commencement of classes or when there is an inventory of
donated food commodities at year end. In subsequent periods, when the School Board has a legal
claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue 1s removed from the combined balance sheet
and the revenue 1s recognized.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISII SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

D. BUDGET PRACTICLS

The proposcd budgets for fiscal year 2002 were completed and made available for public inspection
at the School Board office on August 2, 2001. A public hearing was held on August 9, 2001 for
suggestions and comments from taxpayers. The proposed fiscal year 2002 budgcetls were formally
adopted by the School Board on September 13, 2001. The budgets, which included proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them, for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and
Capital Projects FFunds were published in the official journal ten days prior to the public hearings.

The budgets for the General and Capilal Projects Funds for the fiscal year 2002 were prepared on the
modified accrual basis of accounting except that outstanding encumbrances at the close of the fiscal
vear are treated as expenditures. ‘The Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds' budgets for the 2001
fiscal year were prepared on a modified accrual basis, consistent with gencrally accepted accounting
principles (GAAD).

Formal budgetary accounts are integrated into thc accounting system during the year as a
management control device, including the recording of encumbrances. Appropriations are valid
only for the year in which made, and any part of such appropriation which i1s not cncumbered or
expensed lapses at the end of the year. Current year transactions which are directly related to prior
year's budget are not rebudgcted 1n the current year.

The level of control over the budget is exercised at the function or program lcvel for the General and
Special Revenue Funds. at the project level for the Capital Projects Funds and at the individual debt
issue level for the Debt Service Funds. The Superintendent is authorized to transfer budget amounts
within each function; however, any supplemental appropriations that amend the total expenditures of
any fund rcquirc School Board approval. As required by state law, when actual revenucs within a
fund are failing to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by five per cent or more, and/or actual
expenditures within a fund are exceeding estimated budgeted expenditures by five per cent or more,
a budget amendment to reflect such changes is adopted by the School Board in an open meeting.
Budgeted amounts included in the financial statcments include the original adopted budget and all
subsequent amendments. Amendments to the budget were not material.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

The following is a reconciliation between the excess (dcficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures and other financing uses for the General and Capital Projects Funds as
reflected in Basis Financial Statements, which is prepared on a GAAP basis, and in Other
Supplemental Information, which is prepared on a non-GAAYP basis. Because the budgets in the
Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds are prepared on a modified accrual basis, no differences in
budget basis and GAAP basis occur for those funds.

General Fund:
Excess of revenues and other
[Tnancing sources over expenditures
and other financing uses — Basis Financial
Statements $ 11,305,698
Add - prior year encumbrances liquidated 564,130
|.css - current year encumbrances (1.472,696)
Excess of revenues and other
financing sources over cxpenditures
and other financing uses — Other Supplementary
Information $ 10,397,132

Izxcess of revenues and other
financing sources over expenditures
and other financing uses — Basis I'lmancial
Statements $ 25,468,525
Add - prior year encumbrances liquidated 7,088,400
Less - current year cncumbrances (8,026,905)
Excess of revenucs and other
financing sources over expenditures
and other financing uses — Other Supplementary

Information $ 24.530,020

. ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments are
rccorded, is cmployed by the General Fund and Capital Projects Funds. Encumbrances outstanding
at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities. As materials are subsequently received and construction contracts are executed, liabilities
are recorded and the related encumbrances are liguidated.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISII SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

I'. CASIL CASH CQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and interest-bearing demand deposits.  Cash cquivalents
include amounts tn time deposits.

Under state law, the School Board may deposit funds with a fiscal agent organized under the laws of the
State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States. The School
Board may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes and bills, or certificates and time deposits of
state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. In
addition, local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in the Louisiana Asset Management
Pool (LAMP). a non-profit corporation formed by the State Treasurer and organized under the laws of
the State of Louisiana, which operates a local government investment pool. Investments are stated at
cost, which approximates fair value, and is the same as the valuc ot the pool shares.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid Investments with a maturity of three
months or less at date of acquisition are considered to be cash equivalents in the Internal Service Funds.

(GG. INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES

Intergovernmental receivables consist of receivables for reimbursement of expenditures under various
state and federal programs and grants. All amounts arc expected to be collected within the next twelve
months.

H. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

During the normal coursc of operations, numerous transactions occur between lunds for goods provided
or services rendered. These receivables and payables, as well as short-term interfund loans, are
classificd as due {rom other funds or due to other funds. Any residual balances outstanding between
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “internal balances”.

. INVENTORY

Inventory of the School Food Service Special Revenue Fund consists of food purchased by the School
Board and commoditics granted by the United States Department of Agriculture through the Louisiana
Department of Education. The commodities are recorded as revenues and expenditurcs when consumed.
Commodities inventory at year-end is recorded as defcrred revenue. The purchased food is recorded as
expenditures when consumed. All inventory items purchased are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), and
donated commeodities are assigned values based on information provided by the Uniled States
Department of Agricuiture.
(continued)

37




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, L.ouisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

J. CAPITAL ASSETS

Land, buildings and improvements, and furniture and equipment are recorded as expenditures in the
covernmental or business-type activities columns in. the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not
available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated market value on the date of donation.
Approximately 95 per cent of general fixed assets are valued at historical cost, while the remaining 5
per cent are valued at estimated cost, based on the historical cost of like items. Capital assets are
defined by the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $1,000.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or matenally
extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized over the remaimng useful lives
of the assets.

Capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives (excluding any applicable salvage
value). Estimated useful life is management’s estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet
service demands. Straight line depreciation is used based on the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land n/a
Buildings and Improvements:

Fixed Buildings and Improvements 20
Temporary Buildings (Portables) 20
Furniture & equipment.

Heavy Equipment 10
Office Equipment - 5
Furniture and Fixtures 5
Computers, electronics, and Video Equipment 3

K. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types mn the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities 1n the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs, when material, are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.
(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

All 12-month non-school administrative employees earn from 10 to 20 days of vacation leave each
year, depending on length of service with the School Board. A maximum of five days of vacation
leave may be carried forward to the next calendar year. Upon termination, earned vacation leave 1s
paid to the employee at the employee's current rate of pay.

All school board employees earn from 10 to 13 days of sick leave each year, depending upon the
number of months employed. Sick leave can be accumulated without limitation. Upon retirement, a
maximum of 25 days of unused sick leave is paid to the employee at the employee's current rate
of pay, and all unused sick leave is used in the retirement benefit computation as earned service.
Any employee with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to approval by the School Board, to one
semester of sabbatical leave after three years of continuous service or two semesters of sabbatical leave
after six or more years of continmous service. Leave may be granted for medical purposes and
professional and cultural improvement.

The cost of compensated absence privileges (unused sick leave) i1s recognized as a current year
expenditure in the General Fund when leave is actually taken, or when employees are paid for accrued
leave upon retirement or death. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if

they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

At June 30, 2002, employees of the School Board have accumulated and vested $10,667,456 of
compensated absence benefits in salary and salary related payments.

M. SALES AND USE TAXES

On June 25, 1966, the voters of St. Tammany Parish approved a one per cent sales and use tax which,
after payment of necessary costs and expenses of collecting the tax, is dedicated for payments of salaries
of teachers and other school personnel and for other operating expenses. On September 18, 1976, the
voters of St. Tammany Parish approved a one per cent sales tax to be levied on behalf of the St.
Tammany Parish School Board for a period of 15 years. On May 5, 1990 the voters of the parish
authorized an extension of this tax for an additional 15 years, until expiration in 2007. The proceeds are
dedicated for the purposes of capital improvements, maintenance, and operating expenses of the School
Board. The sales and use taxes are collected by the St. Tammany Parish Tax Collector for a fee of 1.15
per cent of the monthly collections.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

N. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS-GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For government-wide statement of net assets, net assets are reported as restricted when constraints
placed on net asset use are either:

Externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments;

Imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the School Board’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

O. RESERVES OF FUND BALANCE - FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reserves on the governmental funds represent portions of fund balances that are not available for
appropriations tor expenditures or have been legally segregated for future use.

P. CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS

The School Board provides for losses and anticipated expenses resulting from claims and judgements
including claim adjustment expenditures/expense, salvage and subrogation. Losses resulting from
claims and judgements are estimated by utilizing a case by case review of all claims in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification Section C50.

The hability for such losses is recorded in the Internal Service Funds. Incurred but not reported claims
as of June 30, 2002, have been considered in determining the accrued hability.

Q. COMPARATIVE DATA AND TOTAL COLUMNS ON COMBINED STATEMENTS

Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the basic financial statements in order
to provide an understanding of changes in the School Board's financial position and operations of
these funds. However, comparative data (i.e., presentation of prior year total by fund type) has not
been presented in ecach of the statements since their inclusion would make the statements unduly
complex and difficult to read. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been
reclassified 1n order to be consistent with the current year’s presentation. In the fund financial
statements interfund elimination’s have not been made in the aggregation of this data and there are
certain reconciling items which are further explained in Statements D and F.

(continued)

40




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

2. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended June 30, 2002, the following funds had actual expenditures over appropniations,

at the functional level:

Fund and Function Budget Actual Excess
General Fund:
Adult education programs $ 469,781 $ 471,662 $ 1,881
Instructional staff support 7,299,427 7,467,590 168,163
Special Revenue Funds:
Sales Tax 1966-general administration 302,000 304,083 2,083
Sales Tax 1977-general administration 302,000 304,083 2,083
IDEA* 4048 814 4,431,035 382,221
Vocational education® 0 207 207
JASA¥* | 670,304 711,162 40,858
Miscellaneous Programs* 2,735,355 3,750,226 1,014,871
Debt Service Fund:
Sales Tax Bond Reserve-transfers out 50,000 51,931 1,931
Capital Projects Fund:
Parishwide construction-Architect &

Engineers 300,000 303,204 3,204

(“*) Revenues exceeded budgeted amounts by same amounts thus the net affect on net income was $0.

Actual expenditures exceeded appropriations as a result of unanticipated expenditures occurring in
the month of June after the last budget revision. The excess expenditures were funded by available

and appropriable fund balances.

3. AD VALOREM TAXES

The following is a summary of authorized and levied parish-wide ad valorem taxes for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2002:

Mills

Constitutional 4.47
Additional Support 6.26
Construction, Maintenance and Operations 4.47
Improve, Maintain and Operating 46.00
Bond and Interest - District No. 12 25.90
Total millage 87.10
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Year of
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At June 30, 2002, the School Board’s carrying value of deposits are as follows:

Money market accounts:

Governmental Funds $ 50,463,389
Proprietary Funds 4,330,351
Total money market accounts $ 54,793,740

Cash balances of all funds are combined to the extent possible. Interest earned on deposits is distributed to
the individual funds based on the invested balances of the participating funds during the year. Interest is
recorded when earned.

Under state law, the bank balances of these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the
pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the
federal deposit insurance must at all times equal or exceed the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent.
At June 30, 2002, cash and cash equivalents are entirely insured or collaterized with securities held by a
mutually acceptable third party financial institution in the School Board's name; however, the securities
may be released only upon the written authorization of the School Board. This is the lowest credit risk as
defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The bank balances are fully insured and
collaterized at June 30, 2002 as follows:

Money market accounts $ 59,550,782
Time deposit accounts (investments) 41,950,000
Total bank balances $101,500,782
Federal deposit insurance 300,000
Pledged securities 114,016,469
Total collateral $114,316,469

In addition, at year-end, the individual schools held cash, cash equivalents and investments of $3,974,175 n
various accounts. The balances of these accounts are fully collaterized with either FDIC insurance and/or
pledged securities. Because these accounts are not assets of the School Board (Agency Funds) the balances
are not retlected in the fund financial statement or the government-wide financial statements.

5. INVESTMENTS

Investments of $99,982,809 ($98,928,664 in the governmental funds and $1,054,145 in the proprietary funds)
at June 30, 2002 include $58,032,809 that are in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a local
government investment pool. The remaining $41,950,000 are deposited in certificates of deposit. In
accordance with GASB Codification Section 150.165, the investment in LAMP is not categorized in the three
risk categories provided by GASB Codification Section 150.164 because the investment is in the pool of
funds and thereby not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. LAMP is
administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana.
Only local governments having contracted fo participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of
assets. While LAMP is not required to be a registered investment company under the Investment Company
Act of 1940, its investment policies are similar to those established by rule 2-a7, which governs registered
money market funds. The Lamp portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local

continued
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statementis
June 30, 2002

governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest. Accordingly, Lamp Investments are restricted to
securities issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U.S. Treasury, the U.S. Government, or one of its agencies,
enterprises, or instrumentality’s, as well as repurchase agreements collaterized by those securities. The
dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of Lamp assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and consists
of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The fair value of investments is determined on a
weekly basis to monitor any variances between amortized costs and market value. For purposes of
determining participant’s shares, investments are valued at amortized cost that approximates fair value.
Lamp is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account balances.

6. DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS

Individual balances due from/to other funds are as follows:

Due From Due To
Fund Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $ 7.763.450 $ 428.550
Special Revenue Funds:
IASA 313,219 1,866,702
IDEA - 518,989
Vocational Education 415 20,710
Miscellaneous Programs 38,445 886,531
8G 30,470 181,633
School Food Service - 125
1977 Sales Tax 7,827 2218778
1966 Sales Tax - 2,218,778
Community Ed - 10,014
Total Special Revenue Funds 390,376 7.922.260
Debt Service Funds:
Sales Tax Bond Sinking 165,833 -
Sales Tax Bond Reserve - 7.827
Total Debt Service Funds 165,833 7.827
Capital Projects Funds:
Parish Wide Construction - 693
Total Capital Project Funds - 693
Total Governmental Fund Type $ 8,319,659 $8,359.330
Internal Service Funds:
Risk Management 54,235 14,939
Workmans’ Compensation 375 -
‘Total Internal Service Funds 54,610 14.939
Total Proprietary Fund Type $ 34610 $ 14939
Total $ 8,374,269 3742
(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of changes in capital assets are as follows:

Balance as of Balance
July 1, 2001 June 30,
(as restated) Additions Deletions 2002
Governmental activities: ‘
Land $ 7427,195 $ 175695 & 7,602,890
Buildings and improvements 233,787,217 24 835,801 - 258,623,018
Furniture and equipment 24,939,150 2,433,345 295,005 27,077,490
Construction in progress 20,933,711 18,561,775 25,165,258 14,330,228
Total $ 287.087.273 $46,006.616  $25460263  $ 307,633,626
Less accumulated depreciation: :
Buildings and improvements $ 149335555 § 7362428 § - $156,697,083
Furniture and equipment 19.913,609 2,675 861 31,955 22,557,515
Construction 1n progress - - - -
Total accumulated depreciation $ 169,249,164 10,038,289 31,955 $179,255,498
Governmental activities
Capital assets, net $ 117,838,109 335,968,327 $ 25428308 8,12

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows:
Regular programs $ 966,343
Special programs 223,121
Vocational education programs 176,379
Other instructional programs 136,908
Special programs 87,584
Adult/continuing education programs 20,278
Pupil support 110,997
Instructional staff support 55,417
General administration 32,409
School admimstration 31,023
Business administration 19,483
Operation and maintenance of plant 231,916
Pupil transportation 14,112
Central services 96,130
Food services 191,773
Community service programs 3,073
Facilities, Acquisitions & Construction 7.641.343

Total depreciation expense $10,038,289

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOQOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2002

Construction in progress at June 30, 2002 is composed of the following.

Project

Incurred as of

Authorization June 30, 2002 Committed

Abita Springs Elementary $ 1,078,035 $ 943,120 § 134,915
Chatta Ima Elementary 160,500 5,351 155,149
Covington High 1,925,000 1,126,045 798.955
Covington High 133,750 5,351 155,149
Creekside Junior High 6,285,395 5,244,018 1,041,377
Fifth Ward Junior High 1,680,435 33,405 1,647,030
Lee Road Junior High 401,250 395,150 6,100
Lyon Elementary 160,500 5,351 155,149
Mandeville High 2,027.000 1,114,613 912,387
Mandeville High 187,250 2,140 185,110
Pear] River High 267,500 225,910 41,590
Pitcher Junior High 347,750 203,291 144,459
St. Tammany Junior High 509,605 39,917 469,083
Salmen High 2,110,000 1,283,059 826,941
Schoen Middle 3,729,900 41,147 3,688,753
Sixth Ward Junior High 294,115 18,194 275,921
Slidell High 3,072,150 1,720,269 1,351,881
Slidell High 321,000 36,604 284,396
Woodlake Elementary 2.576.383 __ 1.886.,659 689,724

Total $27.267,518 $14,330.228 $12.937.290

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The School Board initiated a risk management program for workers' compensation in fiscal year
1988. Premiums are paid into the Workers' Compensation Internal Service Fund by all funds
from which salaries are paid and are available 1o pay claims, claim reserves and administrative
costs of the program. During fiscal year 2002, a total of $2,419.421 was incurred in benefits and
administrative costs. An excess coverage insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of
$250,000. An amount for self-insurance losses of $1,067,919 has been accrued as a habihty
based upon an actuary's estimate. Interfund premiums are based primarily upon the individual
funds' claims experience and are reported as expenditures in the individual funds.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

In addition, the School Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to and destruction of assets; and natural disasters. During fiscal year 1990, the School Board
established a Risk Management Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its
uninsured risk of loss. Under this program, the Risk Management Fund provides coverage up to
a maximum of $150,000 for each general liability claim and $150,000 for each property damage
claim. The School Board purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage
provided by the Fund. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage during the

fiscal year.

The General Fund of the School Board makes payments to the Risk Management Fund based on
estimates of the amounts needed to pay claims and to accumulate funds for future catastrophic
losses. At June 30, 2002, $3,105,094 of fund equity is designated for future catastrophic losses.
The claims habality of $605,576 reported in the Fund at June 30, 2002 1s based on the
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board which requires that a hability for
claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it
is probable that a hability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount

of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

Changes in the claims liability amount in previous fiscal years were as follows:

Benefit
Beginning of Claimsand  Payments Balance at
Fiscal Year  Changes in And Fiscal
Liabihty Estimates Claims Year-End
Workers' Compensation:
1992-93 625,505 806,967 551,603 880,869
1993-94 880,869 813,785 127,379 967,275
1994-95 967,275 783,809 621,322 1,129,762
1995-96 1,129,762 804,968 971,398 963,332
1996-97 963,332 703,135 851,223 815,244
1997-98 815,244 1,246,261 1,106,116 955,389
1998-99 955,389 1,492,873 1,266,378 1,181,884
1999-00 1,181,884 063,236 1,248,426 896,694
2000-01 896,694 1,287,634 1,305,470 878,858
2001-02 $ 878,858 $2,119,421  $1,930,360 $1,067.919
Risk Management:

1992-93 391,000 301,887 283,451 409,436
1993-94 409,436 819,898 402,128 827,206
1994-95 827,206 339,874 394,954 972,126
1995-96 972,126 920,627 920,627 972,126
1996-97 972,126 462,088 360,693 867,521
1997-98 867,521 529,393 496,914 900,000
1998-99 900,000 380,853 580,853 900,000
1999-00 900,000 711,930 711,930 900,000
2000-01 900,000 562,063 362,063 900,000
2001-02 $ 900,000 $ 8,719 $ 303,143 $605,576

The School Board continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including
employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these nsks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

9. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of the long-term debt transactions for the year ended June 30, 2002:

Balance Balance Due
July |, June 30, Within
2001 Additions _Deductions 2002 One Year
Sales Tax Bonds § 10,335,000 $ $ 1,450,000 $ 8,885,000 $1,545,000
(General Obligation
Bonds 106,550,000 47,410,000 10,140,000 143,820,000 7,415,000
Certificates of
Indebtedness 1,625.000 790,000 835,000 8§35.000
118,510,000 47.410,600 12,380,000 153,540,000 $9,795,000
Compensated Absences 10.001,040 _1.097.999 431,583 10.667.456 -
Total $128.511,040 $48.507.999 $12.811,583 § 164207456 $9,795,000

In April 2002, the School Board issued $47,410,000 in general obligation bonds with a final
maturity date of April 1, 2020. Approximately $44,000,000 of the bond proceeds less the
1ssuance costs will be used to fund construction of new and existing buildings. The remaining
portion: was deposited into an irrevocable trusts to be used to refund the remaining bonds from
the $5,000,000, series 1992 School District Number 12 bonds. The interest rate on the 2002
bonds ranges from 3.50% to 5.00%. The interest rate on the 1992 bonds ranged from 5.40% to
9.00%. By refunding the 1992 bonds, which are considered defeased, the School Board will save
approximately $1,250,000 in future interest payments the School Board would have made.

(continued)
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A schedule of the individual issues outstanding as of June 30, 2002 is as follows:

Sales Tax Bonds:

1992
1995
Total Sales

Tax Bonds

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Notes to the Financial Statements

Original
Issue

$ 11,000,000
7.500,000

18,500,000

General Obligation Bonds:

1993
1996
1997
1998A
19988
2002
Total General
Obligation
Bonds

Certificates of
Indebtedness
1994

Total

13,195,000
25,000,000

7,415,000
55,000,000
14,480,000
47,410,000

162,500,000

6.000.000

$187.000.000

Covington, Louisiana

June 30, 2002

Interest
Rate

5.75%
5.50%

4.8-5.0%
5.4-8.0%
4.9-5.2%
4.4-5.0%
4.4-5.0%
3.5-5.0%

5.00%

Final
Payment

Due

Interest
to
Maturity

49

2007
2007

2013
2016
2010
2018
2011
2022

2003

$ 896,425
674.575

1,571,000

3,244,900
9,570,158
1,490,616

22,982,590
2,261,190

25.964.348

65,513,802

41,750

$67,126,552

Principal

QOutstanding

$ 4,980,000

3.905.000

8.885.000

9,775,000
20,630,000
6,040,000
48,255,000
11,710,000
47.410,000

143,820,000

835,000

$153.540,000

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

All principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by the
annual ad valorem tax levy on taxable property within the parish or by the 1977 sales and use tax.
At June 30, 2002, the School Board has accumulated $11,948,764 in the debt service funds for

tuture debt service requirements.

The Sales Tax Bonds require the maintenance of a reserve as additional security for debt
repayment. At June 30, 2002, the School Board has accumulated $1,850,000 in reserve and is in
compliance with the requirements of the debt agreement.

The sales tax bonds, general obligation bonds, and certificates of indebtedness are due as
follows:

Principal Payments

Certificates
Year Ending of Interest
June 30, Bonds Indebtedness Payments Total

2003 $ 9,795,000 $ 835,000 $ 7,579,890 $ 18.209,890
2004 10,235,000 7,048,989 17,283,989
2005 9,705,000 6,540,533 16,245,533
2006 9,465,000 6,029,629 15,494 .629
2007 10,020,000 3,554,822 15,574,822
2008-2012 44 270,000 21,082,615 65,352,615
2013-2017 39,485,000 10,686,074 50,171,074
2018-2022 19.730,000 2.604.000 22.334.000

$152,705.000 $ 835,000 $67,126,552 $220.666.552

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board is legally restricted from
incurring long-term bonded debt funded solely by ad valorem taxes in excess of 35 percent of the
assessed value of taxable property. At June 30, 2002, the statutory limit is $323,949.656 and the
legal debt margin is $189,431,863. Outstanding bonded debt payable from ad valorem taxes at
June 30, 2002 totaled $143,820,000.

10. PRIOR YEAR DEFEASANCE OF DEBT

On Apnil 1, 2002, the School Board defeased the 1992 General Obligation Bonds maturing April
1, 2012. On June 1, 1991, the School Board defeased the June 1, 1984 School District No. 12
General Obligation Bonds maturing on or after March 1, 1995. On February 1, 1993, the School
Board deteased the June 1, 1980 School District No. 8 General Obligation Bonds maturing on or
after March 1, 1994. For each defeasement an irrevocable trust fund was created. New debt was

issued and the proceeds were used to purchase U.S, Government Securities that were placed in
the trust funds.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

The investments and fixed earnings from the investments are sufficient to fully service the
defeased debt until the debt i1s called or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt 1s
considered defeased and therefore removed as a hahlity from the School Board. As of June 30,
2002, the following outstanding bonds are considered defeased:

Amount
Qutstanding
School District No. 12:
June 1, 1984 $ 1,955,000
August 1, 1992 3,415,000
School District No. 8:
June 1, 1980 15.000
Total $ 5.385.000

11. TAX ARBITRAGE REBATE

Under the Tax Reform Act of 1986, interest earned on the debt proceeds in excess of interest
expense prior to the disbursement of the proceeds must be rebated to the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS). For fiscal year 2002, no arbitrage was due to the IRS.

12. RETIREMENT PLANS

Substantially all employees of the School Board are members of two statewide retirement
systems. In general, professional employees (such as teachers and principals) and lunchroom
workers are members of the Teachers’ Retirement System of Louisiana; other employees, such as
custodial personnel and bus drivers are members of the Louisiana School Employees’ Retirement
System. These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
administered by separate boards of trustees. Pertinent information, as required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27, relative to each plan follows:

A. Teachers’ Retirement System of Louisiana (TRS)

Plan Description: The School Board participates in two membership plans of the TRS, the
Regular Plan and Plan A. The TRS provides retirement benefits as well as disability and
survivor benefits. Ten years of service credit is required to become vested for retirement benefits

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

and five years to become vested for disability and survivor benefits. DBencfits are established and
amended by staic statute. The TRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information of the TRS. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Teachers’ Retirement System of Louistana, Post Ofhice Box 94123,
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123, or by calling (225) 925-6446.

Funding Policy: Plan membcrs are required to contribute 8.0 percent and 9.1 percent of their
annual covered salary for the Regular Plan and Plan A, respectively. The School Board 1s
requircd to contribute at an actuanially determined rate. The current rate 1s 13.1 percent of annual
covered payroll for both membership plans. Member contributions and employcr contributions
for the TRS arc established by statc law and rates are established by the Public Retirement
Systems’ Actuarial Commillee. The School Board’s employer contribution to the TRS, as
provided by state law, i1s funded by the State of louisiana through annual appropriations, by
deductions from local ad valorem taxes, and by remittances from the School Board.

‘The School Board s contributions to the TRS for the years ended June 30, 2002, 2001, and 2000,
were $16,506.102, 516,250,818, and $17.2006,228, respectively. equal to the required
contributions for cach year.

B. Louisiana School Employees’ Retirement System (LSERS)

Plan Description: The LLSERS provides retirement benefits as well as disability and survivor
bencfits. Ten years of service credit is required to become vested for retirement benefits and five
years to become vested lor disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are established and
amended by state statute. The LSERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required suppiementary information for the LSERS. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Louisiana School Employees’ Retirement System, Post Ofticc Box
44516, Baton Rouge. Louisiana 70804, or by calling (225) 925-6484.

Funding Policy: For [iscal years 2000, 2001 and 2002, neither plan members nor the School
Board were required to contribute to LSERS since it is considered actuanally to be fully funded.
Member contributions and employer contributions for the LSERS are established by state law
and rates are established by the Public Retirement Systems’ Actuarial Committee. The School
Board’s employer contribution for the LSERS i1s funded by the State of Louisiana through annual
appropriations and by remittances from the School Board.

(continued)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

13. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTII CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS

In accordance with State statutes, the School Board provides certain continuing health care and
life insurance benchits for its retired employces. Substantially all of the School Board's
employees become cligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working
for the School Board. Currently, 957 retirees arce cligible to participate in these benefits. These
benefits for retirees are provided through the State Employees Group Benefits Program whose
monthly premiums are paid jointly by the retirees and by the School Board. During fiscal year
2001, the School Board contributed 62% of the total premium for life insurance and 95% of the
total premium for health care insurance provided to the retirees. The School Board recognizes
the cost of providing these benefits (the Board's portion of premtums) as an expenditure on a
pay-as-you-go basts when the monthly premiums are due. The School Board's cost of providing
all health care benefits and lifc insurance premiums to the approximately 3,450 active and 775
retired participating employees amounted to  $23.961.190 for 2002. For 2002, thc cost of
premiums paid for rctirees totaled $5,917,792.

14. LEASES

The School Board has operating lease agreements for the rental of office equipment and
classroom space. Rental expenditures for the ycar ended June 30, 2002 are as follows:

Office Equipment $ 591,570
Classroom Space 35.003
Total $ 646,573

15. CHANGES IN AGENCY DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS

A summary of changcs in the School Activity Agency Fund's deposits due others are as follows:

Balance at Beginning of Year $ 3,665,946
Additions 10,134,241
Deductions 9.826.012
[3alance at lind of Year $3.974.175

(continved)
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

16. LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

At June 30, 2002, the School Board was a defendant in lawsuits principally arising from the
normal course of operations. The School Board's legal counsel has reviewed the School Board's
claims and lawsuils, which ar¢ primarily personal injury claims, in order to evaluate the
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the School Board and to arrive at an estimate, if any, of
the amount or range of potential loss to the School Board. As a result of the review, the various
claims and lawsuits have been categorized into "probable"”, "reasonably possible”, or "remote",
as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Amounts of claims classified as
"probable” have been accrued in the claims liability and the liability for sclf-insurance losses, as
cxplained 1n Note 8. The amount of claims and lawsuits that have been classificd as "reasonably
possible” individually range from $3,000 to $100,000. It is the opinion of the School Board,
after conterring with legal counsel, that the liability, if any, which might arise from these lawsuits
would not have a material adverse effcct on the School Board's financial position.

The School Board participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs.  Although
the grant programs have been audited in accordance with the Single Audit Act through June 30,
2002, these programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits and resolution of
previously identitied questioned costs.  The amount, if any, of cxpenditurcs that may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the School Board
cxpects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUISTMENTS

The beginnming tund balances of the General Fund, School Food Services Fund, and the $50
MiHion Construction Capital Projects Fund has becn restated by $18,981, $(2,600), and 7,037,
respectively. The restatement was due to prior year revenue not recorded in the proper year and
had a net affect of $23.418 on prior year income. The beginning net assets of the workers’
compensation fund (proprictary fund) has been restated by $296,647. The restatement was due
Lo prior year revenue not recorded in the proper year and had a net affect of $296,647 on prior
year income. The restatement had no aftect on current year income or assets.
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by: Jessica Dean
Fontainebleau High School
Teachers: Alack/ Culbertson
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“Ballerina” o
by Lacey Wans
Kindergarten, Cypress Cove
Teacher: Mrs.Hebert -
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Statement 1-1
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana
General Fund
Budget Comparison Schedule (Non GAAP Basis)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
Variance
~ Budgeled Amounts Net 2002 From
Original Final Change Actusi Budget
Budgetary Fund Balance,
Beginning of Year (as restated) $44.997 286 $44 997 296 320 $45.016 277 $15,981
Resources (Inflows)
Local Sources:
Ad valorem taxes $33,203,841 $33,505 926 $302,085 $34.245,594 $739 6GB
Tuition:
Summer schoi 150,000 150,000 0 150,439 439
Driver education 61,000 61,000 0 58,979 {2,021)
Eamings on investments 3,000 Q00 1.775,000 (1,225,000) 1,860,064 85.064
Medical services 282,000 282 DDD Ly 308,552 26,552
Other 354,834 354,834 O 365,151 10,317
Total Resources From Local Sources 37,051,675 36,128,760 (922,915) 36,988,779 860,019
State Sources:
Equalization 122,036 127 123,157,701 1 118,574 123,157,701 a
Contributigns to
Teachers' Retirernent 111,340 111,340 0 114,847 3,507
Revenue sharing 1,802,063 1,802,063 0 1,799,322 (2,741)
Proiessional frnprovemerd Program 220 000 929 000 0 885,400 {43, 591)
Special education 155 884 164,621 8737 165,644 1,023
Adult equcation 171,500 203,762 32262 187 474 (16,288)
Non-pubhc students 487 322 201.644 14,322 501,932 288
Salary supplement 0 335,631 339,631 97.988 (237.643)
Miscellaneous 270,000 - 208,043 (61.957) 354 666 186,623
Total Resources From Statle Sources 125.966,236 127,413,805 1.447 5689 127,304,983 (108,822)
Federal Sources:
ROTC 341,000 348,000 7.000 335,779 7.779
School to Work 0 4; 0 2274 2274
Adult education 190,000 190,000 0 225,212 35,212
Total Resources From Federal Sources 531,000 538,000 7.000 583,265 45,265
Totai Resources $163,548 911 $164,080,565 $531,654 $164,877,027 $796,462
Other Financing Sources
Operating transfers in;
1966 Sales Tax Fund $23.770,508 $24,474 939 $704,431 $25,258179 3783 240
1977 Sales Tax Fund 21,408 3589 22,091,290 685,931 25,123,345 $3,032,055
School Food Service Fund 211,000 218,000 71,000 216,306 {$1,694)
idea Fund Q 148 5672 148,562 148,562 %0
Indirect costs 325,511 420 000 04 485 530,589 $110,589
Total Other Financing Sources 345.712,378 $47,352,791 $1.640,413 $51,276,981 $3.924 150
Amounts Available for Appropriations $254,258 585 $256,430,652 $2 172.067 $261,170,285 34,739,633
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l ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana
eneral Fund
Budget Comparizon Schedules {Non GAAF Basis)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
l . Budgeted Amounts
Qriginal Final
Expenditures
Current:
Instraction:.
Regular Ed programs $81,840.557 $83.338,445
Special Ed programs 39,330,950 39,509,883
Vocational Ed programs 4,174,833 4,108,723
Other instructional programs 7.620,288 8,265,533
Special programs 384 725 431,752
Adult Ed programs 432,518 469 781
Support Services:
Pupil suppont 8,406,709 3.518,338
Instructional staff support 7,408,425 7,299 427
I General administration 3,187 935 3,158,398
School administration 12,183,777 11,987,915
Business administratiort 1,783.825 1,732,188
QOperation and mainienance of plant 18,646,545 18,513,172
Pupil transportation 14 635,935 14,651,720
l Central services 2647776 2,832,586
Food service 1,712,548 1,694 676
Community service programs 48,605 48,605
Facililies acquisilion and construction 233,507 227 641
Opetaling transfers out 3.743.081 3,743,091
' Tolal Charges to Appropriations $208,322.599 $210,462 874
Budgetary Fund Balance, Ending T $45,935,986 ___ $45.967.778
' See notes to budgelary comparison schedules
l 56

Net
Change

{$1.497 888)
(178,933)
65,110
(645,245)
(47.027)
(37.263)

(111,579)
108,998
(463}

195 862
51637
33373
84,215
(184,810)
17,872

0

5,866

0

($2,140.275)

$31,79

2002
Actual

$82,360,955
39,304,130
4,027,369
7,345,202
422 580
471,662

8,432,040
7,467 590
3,024 484
11,845.868
1.582,030
17364017
14 270323
2,210.244
1,641,058
42832
137,401
3.743 091

$205,756.876

_S55413.408_

Statement 1-1

Variance
From
Budget

$977,490
205,753
82,354
16,331
9,172
(1.8681)

36,208
{168,163)
163,914
142,047
150,158
1,149,155
281,397
622,342
23,618
5,773
J0.240
0

54,705 998

$9,445 631



Statement 1-2

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOQL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

1966 Sales Tax Fund
Budget Comparison Schedule {Non GAAP Basis)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Nel 2002 From
Qriginal Final Change Aclual Budget

Budgetary Fund Balance, Beginning of Year $5,000 $5,000 $0 55,002 $2
Resotrces {Inflows)
Local sources.

Taxes-sales and use $24,906,369 $25,669,800 $763.431 $26.423,883 $754.083

Earnings on investments 75,000 17,000 {58.000) 49 147 32,147
Amounts Available for Appropriations 24 986,369 25,691,800 705.431 26,478,032 786,232
Charges to Appropriations {Outflows)

Support services-general administration 301,000 302,000 1,000 304,083 (2,083)

Operating transfers out 24 680,369 25,384,500 704,431 26,168,040 (783,240)
Total Charges to Appropriations 24,981, 369 25,686,800 705,431 26,472,123 (785,323)
Budgetary Fund Balance, End of Year $5,000 $5.000 $0 $5,909 $909

See notes to budgetary comparison schedules
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

1977 Sales Tax Fund

Budget Comparison Schedule {Non GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Statement 1-3

Variance
3 Budgeled Amounts Net 2002 From
Original ____ Final Change Actual Budget

Budgetary Fund Balance, Beginning of Year  $2,036,276 $2,036.276 $0 $2,036,277 31
Resources (Inflows)
Local sources:

Taxes-sales and use $24 906,369 $25,669 800 $763 431 $26,423,883 $754,083

Earnings on investments 75,000 18,500 (56,500) 00,703 32,203

FFund Transfers In 70,000 90,000 (20,000} 51.930 1,930
Amounts Available for Appropriations 27.087 645 27.774,576 686,931 28,562.793 788,217
Charges to Appropriations {Outflows)

Support services-general administration 301,000 302,000 1.000 304,083 {2.083)

Operating transfers oul 24475057 25,160,988 685,931 28,193,043 (3,032,058)
Totat Charges to Appropriations 24 776,057 25,462 988 686,931 25,497 126 {3,034,138)
Budgetary Fund Balance. End of Year $2,311,588 $2,311.588 $0 $65.667 §$2,245.921!

See notes to budgetary comparison schedules
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCITOOIL. BOARD
Covington, Louistana

Nofes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

A. BUDGETS

(eneral Budget Practices

The proposed budgcts for fiscal year 2002 were completed and made available for public
inspection at the School Board office on August 2, 2001. A public hearing was held on
August 9, 2001 for suggestions and comments [rom laxpayers. The proposed fiscal year
2002 budgets were formally adopted by the School Board on September 13, 2001. The
budgets, which included proposed expenditures and the means of [inancing them, for the
(ieneral, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds were published in the
official journal ten days prior to the public hearings.

Formal budgetary accounts are integrated into the accounting system during the year as a
management control device, Including the recording of encumbrances.  Appropriations
arc valid only for the ycar in which made, and any part of such appropriation which is not
encumbered or expensed lapses at the end of the year. Current year transactions that are
dircctly related to prior year's budget are not rebudgeted in the current year.

The level of control over the budget is exercised at the [unction or program level for the
General and Special Revenue Funds, at the project level for the Capital Projects Funds
and at the individual debt issue level for the Debt Service Funds. The Supenntendent 1s
authorized to transfer budget amounts within each function; however. any supplemental
appropriations that amend the total expenditures of any fund require School Board
approval. As required by state law, when actual revenues within a fund arc failing to
meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by five per cent or more, and/or actual
expenditures within a fund are exceeding estimated budgeted cxpenditurcs by five per
cent or more, a budget amendment to reflect such changes is adopted by the School
Board in an open meeting. Budgeted amounts included in the financial statements
include the original adopted budget and all subsequent amendments. Amendments to the
budget were not material.

Budgcet Basis of Accounting

The budgets for the General and Capital Projects Funds for the fiscal year 2002 were
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting cxcept that outstanding
encumbrances at the close of the fiscal year arc treated as expenditurcs. The Special
Revenue and Debt Service Funds' budgets for the 2002 fiscal year were prepared on a
modified accrual basis, consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Incumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments arc rccorded, is employed by the General Fund and Capital Projects Funds.
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCIHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as rescervations of fund balances since
they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. As materials are subsequently recerved

and construction contracts are exccuted, liabilitics are recorded and the related
encumbrances are liquidated.

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

[or the year cnded June 30, 2002, the following funds had actual expenditures over
appropriations, at the lunctional level:

Fund and Function Budget Actual Excess
General Fund:
Adult cducation programs $ 469781 $ 471,662 b 1.881
Instructional staft support 7,299427 7.467.590 168,103
Special Revenue funds:
Sales Tax 1966-general adm. 302,000 304,083 2.083
Sales Tax [977-general adm. 302,000 304,083 2.083

Actual cxpenditures exceeded appropriations as a result of unanticipated expendilures
occurring in the month of June after the last budget revision. The cxcess expenditures

' were {unded by available and appropriable fund balances.

C. BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

Sorurces/inflows of resources:

Actual amounts {budgctary basis) “available for appropriation™ from the General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule $ 2061.170.285

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource but

is not a current vear revenue (45.016,277)
Transfer from other funds is considered as revenue on budgetary basis but

is considered operating transfers on a GAAP basis (51.276.981)

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenucs, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental Funds $ 164,877,027

{ Isesfoutflows of resowrces:

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total charges to appropriations’ from the

Budgetary Compartson Schedule § 205,756,876
Accruals of expenditures in prior years were considered current year expenditures

on the budgetary basis (908,566)
Transfer to other funds is considered as outflows on budgetary basis but

is considered operating transfers on a GAAP basis (3,743.091)

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures. and
Changes in Fund Balance — Govemmental Funds $ 201,105.219
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCIIOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules
For the Year IEnded June 30, 2002

Sources/inflows of resources:

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “available for appropriation™ from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgctary resource but
IS NOt a current year revenue

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenucs, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental Funds

Uses/outflows of resources:

Actual amounts (budgelary basis) “total charges to appropriations’™ {rom the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Transler to other funds 15 considered as outflows on budgetary basis but
Is considered operating transfers on a GAAP basis

‘Tota] revenues as reported on the Statement ot Revenues. Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance Governmental Funds

Sources/inflows of resources:

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “available for appropriation™ from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource but
1$ not a current year revenue

Transter from other funds 1s considered as revenue on budgcetary basis but
1s considered operating transfers on a GAAP basis

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Uses/outflows of resources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total charges to appropriations” from the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Transfer to other funds is considered as outflows on budgetary basis but
15 considered operating transfers on a GAAD basis

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance — Governmental Funds

6l

1966 SALES
TAX FUND
$ 26478032

(5.002)

$ 26473,030

$ 20472,123

(26.168.040)

. 304,083

1977 SALES
TAX FUND

$ 28,562,793
(2,036,277)

(§1.930)

$ .. 26,474,586

$ 28497126

(28.193.043)

$ 304,083




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

OTHER MAJOR GOVRNMENTAL FUNDS




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

$44 Miilion Construction Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
{(Non-GAAP Basis)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Budget

Revenues

Earnings on investments $100,000

Bond proceeds 44 (000,000
Total Revenues 44,100,000
Expenditures
FaciHities acqguisition and construction:

Bond sale expense 150,000

Construction contracts 5,000

Architects and engineers 1,000,000

Election expense 30,000

Equipment 0

Other 5,000
Total Expenditures 1,190,000
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 42,910,000
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year L 0
Fund Balance, End of Year $42 910,000
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Exhibit 1
Variance
From
Actual Budget

$197,797 $97.797
44,000,000 0
44,197,797 97,797
120,401 29,589
630 4,370
943,085 56,915
26,617 3,383
0 0
0 5,000
1,090,733 99,267
43,107,064 197,064
0 0
$43,107,064 $197,064




Revenues

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

$55 Million Construction Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Earnings on investments

Total Revenues

Expenditures

acilities acquisition and construction;

Equipment

Construction contracts
Architects and engineers

Land purchases
Legal services

Other

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

03

Budget

$575,000

575,000

1,000,000
13,750,000
750,000
300,000
10,000
25,000

15,835,000

(15,260,000)

21,701,920

$6,441,920

———————————————————————

Exhibit 2

Variance
From
Actual Budget
$589.136 $14,136
289,136 14 136
804 582 195,418
14 610,639 (860,539)
705 516 44 484
172,845 127,155
2.031 7.969
0 25 000
16,295 513 (460,513)
(15,706,377) (446,377)
21,701,920 L 0
$5.995, 543 _ ($446,377) ($446,377)




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

- COMBINING
NONMAJOR GOVRNMENTAL FUNDS -
BY FUND TYPE




*SPORTS CAR”
by: Brandon Blappert
4th Grade
Sixth Ward Junior High
Teacher: DarlenePowell
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“MATH PORTRAIT”

by: Davis Fontcuberia
8th Grade
William Pitcher Junior High
Teacher: Paulo Dufour
“Studying Weird Math Signg®

Aspiring Fauvists!




Exhibit 3
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

sNonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet - By Fund Type
June 30, 2002

Assetls and Qther Deblts
Assels:
Cash and ¢cash equivalents
investmenls
Racaivables:
Taxes:
Ad valorermn
intergovermmental:
Federal
State
Other
Due from other litnds {nota £)
tvontoty (note 1-0)

Tolal Assets and Other Debils

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabdibins-
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Due o other funds (note 6)
Qlher llabililies
Deflered rovenues

Tatal Liabidites

Fund bailances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Resesved for inventory
Reosarved tor deb! service

Unreserved, undesignated

Totsl Fund Balancos

Total Liabilites and Fund Balances

With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2001

special

Revenie

$4,287 246
0

1,938,746
832,799
2,747
382,549
320,068

$7,764,155

$146,479

D

3,404 704
0

801,451

4,432,634

0

Y4 329

0
3,237,182

3.331,521

$7.764,155

ST

Debt Capitai
Service Projects
$11,506,199 $6.769 293

105,813 210,046
254 591 0

0 0

0 0

1,540 0
165,833 0

0 ¢
$12.033.976 $6,979.339
L — - — - —
$13.38%9 $253,583

0 463,250

7.827 693

0 0

63,996 0
85212 T17.526

0 500G, 662

Q 0
11,948,764 0
0 5,665,101

11,948 764 6,261,813
$12.033 976 $6,979,339

———————————— ———=m N . — —————————— — = S LT — . L. —

Tolals
{Memorandum Ontly)
2002 2001

$22.562.738 $£23.401.082

315,859 0

254 551 221,877

1,938 746 1.769.264

832, 799 354 821

4 287 13,560

548,382 3,035,537

320,008 277,181
$26,777.470 $£29,073,902
$413.451 $232.839

453,250 337 .949

3493224 4598 317

0 28,912

605, 447 6493, 324

5,239,372 5,891,234

596G 662 955,890

U4 320 83.252

11,948 764 10,305,666

8,902,343 11,833,753

21,542,098 23 182 561

326777470 $29.073,902




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covingron, Loulslana

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - By Fund Type

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Revenurs:

Local sources.
Taxes.
Ad viloream
Sales and use
Rentals. leases, amvd royalties
Tuition
Eaminys on investmenls
Food sarnvice
Other

Slate sources:
Equratiratian
Contnbulions to

Teachers' Relirement

Revenue shanng
Frofessional improvememt Program
{ther

F ederal sources

Total 1evenues

Expendilires
Current:
instraclion:
Regular &0 programs
Special Ed programs
Vocational Ed programs
Other instnictional prograins
Speciaf programs
Adult Ed progroms
Support services:
Pupil suppon
instruclional stall suppori
Ceneral adiministralion
School adminlstration
Business adminislralion
Operation and malntenance of plani
PPupd! transpartalion
Central services
Food sarvice
{Communily service programs
Facihiies acquisition and consirucion
Debl service:
Issuance costs
Principal retirement
Interest ahd bank charges

Total expenditures

Excess (Dehcienct) of Revenues
Dver Expendiivres

Other Financing Sources

FPaymenl io escrow agent from bond proceeds
Proceeds Irom bond sale

Actruad interest on issued bonds
Operaiing transfers in
Operating transiers oul

Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess (Deficienct) of Revenues gnd
Other Financing Sowrces Qver Expenditures
and {iher Financing Uses

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (as restated)

Fund Balances, End of Year

Spocial
Neyonue

$0

0

3,420
778,694
73251
2,746,381
112,957

1,183,518

0

0

v
1.720,788
18.875.565

$25,494 574

2268871
3,028 433
296,218
1,148,648
3,498, 954
$4.249

093,897
2,019,357
957
466,060

H

195,412
433,314
0
11.045,963
921,761
G

a
0
0

Tolals

Exhibif 4

(Memorandum Only)

200Z__

$14.008,713
0

3,420
778,694
G0D.827
2,748,381
112,957

1.183,518

0

0

D
1,720,788
18,875,565

26,381,433

340,120 863

{BBB.B59)

2,268,671
3,028 433
206,216
1,148,646
3,498.954
n4,249

993,897
2,019,357
459,745
466,969

0

195.412
433,314

0
11,045,963
921,761
6,639,849

13,335
8,965,000
8,106,390

0

0

0

1,732,650
{895,458)

837,184

{49.665)

3,381,186

$3,331,521

48,556,161

(8,426,208}

{3.417,294)
3,410,000
17,866
7,722 650

(047 387}

6,.785.835

{1,640 463}

Debt Capilal
SEVICo Profecls
$14,098.713 €0

() 0

0 0

¢ 0

270,623 263,953

0 {

0 {]

0 d

0 0

0 4]

0 O

0 0

_ 0 0
$14,360 336 $265.953
G v

0 0

0 0

¢ 0

0 0

0 0

D 0

0 0

450,154 (}

0 0

0 0

0 0

g a

0 0

D 0

0 o

0 6,639,840

13,335 0
8,865,000 0
6,106,380 0
15,534,879 8,639,849
__{1,165.543) {6373 856}
{3,417 ,204) 0
3,410,000 0
17 866 0
2,850,000 3,140,000
{81,831} ¥
2,808,641 3,140,000
1,643 D08 {3,233 898)
16,305,666 9,485,709
$11.948.764 $6.261.813

65

23,182,561

$21.542,098

2001

$132.270.712
0

4.200
55,411
1,325,315
2688320
A8.908

1.183.518

0

0

D
1,215,469
14,754 875

$35 236.728

FA31.603
. 789,079
285,653
293,388
3,315,299
19,045

915.848
2,044 048
434 551
13,218

O

175,442
150,957

0
10,504,221
816,014
3,766,509

0
9,065,000
6.624 583

41,749,468

{6,512 740)

0

0

0
7,199,114
{649 523)

5,549,491

36.751

23,145,810

AT = X

$23.152.561
=7 R i e e—



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2001

Vacational Miscellaneous
IASA IDEA Education Programs 8G

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $1,172.849 $0 0 $356.644 $0

Receivabies 384,363 540 287 20 724 1.094 538 151,163

Due from other funds 313,219 0 415 38,445 30470

Inventory 0 0 0 0 0
Total Assets __$1.870,431 $540,287 $21.138 __$1,489.627 $181.633
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Accounts payable $3,623 $21,298 $429 527,490 $0

Due to other funds 1,866,702 518,989 20,710 886,531 181,633

Other liabilities 0 0 0 0 0

Deferred revenues 106 0 0 575606 0
Total Liabilifies 1,870,431 540,287 21,139 1,489,627 181,633
Fund balances

Reserved for inventory 0 0 0 0 0

Unreserved, undesignated 0 0 D 0 0
Total Fund Balances { 0 0 0 0
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $1,870,431 $540,287 $21,138 $1,489,627 $181,633
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school

Food Service

$2.412,622
577,627

0

320,068

$3.310,317

$90.444
125

0
225,739

316,308

94,329
2,899,650

2,994,009

$3.390,317

Community
Education

Exhibit 5

$345,131
5,990

0

0

__$350721

$3,195
10,014

13,209

0
337,512

337.512

$350,721

Tolals
(Memorandum Only)

2002 2001
$4.287.246 $3,140.684
2,774 292 2,127,157
382,549 2,964 597
320,068 277.781
$7.764,155 $8,510.219
$146 479 528 912
3.484 704 4,304,379
0 28,912
801.451 693,324
4,432,634 5,055,527
94,329 83,252
3,237,192 3,257,934
3,331,521 3,381,186

__S1764155  ___ $BATI3
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Revenues

Local sources:
Rentals, leases and royalties
Tuition
Earnings on investments
Food service
Other

Slate sources:
Equalization
Other

Federal sources

Total Ravenues

Expenditures
Current:
Instruction:
Regular Ed programs
Special Ed programs
Vocational Ed programs
Cther instructional programs
Special programs
Adult Ed programs
Supporl services.
Pupil support
Instructional staff support
(eneral administration
Scheol administration
Qperation and maintenance of plant
Pupil transportation
Food service
Community service programs

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
QOperating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other
Finanging Sources Over
Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

ST. TAMMANY PAR|ISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2001

Vacational
Education

oo QO oQ

296,42

IASA IDEA

$0 30

0 0

0 0

0 0

1,976 0

0 0

0 0

9,579 873 4,789,779
$5,581,849 $4,789,779
1,134,830 0
o 3.024 853

0 0

0 c
3,085,401 0
0 0

256,514 714,443
711,162 495,642
6,549 2,255

0 0

146,760 34,161

2114 159,681

0 ¢

0 0
5,343,830 4,431,035
238,019 398,744

D 0
(238,019) (358,744)
(238,019) {358,744}
0 0

0 0

30 30
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$296,423
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296,423

Miscellaneous
Programs

0
0

4
0

14,336

0
1,120,148
2,698,129

$3,832,613

744,073
1,367

0

1,148 646
290,745
54,249

22,940
733,328
544
466,069
14,491
264,429
8,445

0

3,790,226

82 387

0
(82,387)

{82,387)

o Qoo

600,640

$600,640

389,768
2213

0

0
122,308




Exhibit 6

Tofals
School Community _ {Memoriandum Only)
Food Service Education 2002 2001

$0 $3,420 $3.420 $4,200

0 778.694 778,694 795,411

73,251 0 73,251 162,400
2,746,381 0 2,746,381 2.688,320
74,824 21,821 112,957 38,908
1.183.518 0 1,183,518 1,183,518
0 0 1,720,788 1,215,469
5,505,771 5.590 18,875,565 14,754,875
$9.583,745 $809,525 $25,494 574 $20.803. 101
Q 0 2,268 671 1,531,603

0 0 3,028,433 1,789,079

0 0 296 216 285,653

0 0 1,148,646 293,388

D 0 3.498 954 3,315,299

0 0 54,249 19,045

0 0 993,897 818,848

0 0 2,019 357 2,044,048

0 0 9 591 18,086

0 0 466,969 13,218

0 0 195,412 175,442

0 0 433,314 150,957
11,037,518 o 11,045,963 10,504,221
0 921,761 921,761 816,014
11,037,518 921,761 26,381,433 21,874,901
(1,453,773) (112.236) (886,859) {(1,071,800)
1,592,650 140,000 1,732,690 1,708,114
{216,306) 0 {895,456) (536,623)

1,376,344 140 000 837 194 1,172,491
(77.429) 27,764 {49,665) 100,691
3,071.438 309,748 3,381,186 3,280,495
52,994 009 $337.512 $3,331,521 $3.381,186



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

IASA Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Revenues
| ocal sources - other
Federal sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Instruction:
Regular Ed programs
Special programs
Support services:
Pupil support
Instructional staff support
General administration

Operation and maintenance of plant

Pupil transportation
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers out

Excess Revenues Over
Expenditures and Other
Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Budget

$0
5,980,046

Actual

5,980,046

1,257,991
3,312,882

315,518
670,304
8,309
160,019
2,731

$1,976

5,679,873

5,581,849

1,134,830
3,085,901

256,514
711,162
6,549
146,760
2,114

5,727,754

202,292

(252,292)

5,343,830

238,019

(238,019)

$0
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Variance
From
Budget

$1,976
(400,173)

(398,197)

123,161
226,981

59,004
(40,858)
1,760
13,259
617

383,924

(14,273)

14,273

$0




Exhibit 8
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

IDEA Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Variance
From
Budget ___Actual Budget

Revenues
Federal sources 54,395,840 $4,789,779 $393,939
Total Revenues 4,395,840 4,789,779 393,939
Expenditures
Instruction-Special £d programs 2,730,477 3,024,853 (294 ,376)
Support services:

Pupil support 652,480 714,443 (61,963)

Instructional staff support 489 478 495,642 (6.164)

General administration 3,000 2.255 745

Operation and maintenance of plant 28,198 34,161 (5,963)

Pupil transportation 145,181 159,681 ___(14,500)

Total expenditures 4,048,814 4,431,035 (382,221)

Excess of Revenurs Over

Expenditures 347,026 358,744 11,718
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating transfers out (347.026) (358,744) (11,718)
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 0 0 0
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 0 . 0 0
Fund Balance, End of Year 0 0 0
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Vocational Education Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

Revenues
Federal sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Instruction-Vocational Ed programs
General Administration

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenurs Over
Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Budget

Actual

$325,567

325,567

$296,423

325,567
0

296,423

325,067

296,216
207

296,423

72
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$0

Exhibit 9

Variance
From
Budget

($29,144)

(29,144)

29,351
(207)

29,144




Exhibit 10

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Miscellaneous Programs Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Variance
From
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues
L.ocal sources-other $5,200 $14,336 $9,136
State sources-other 755,683 1,120,148 364 465
Federal sources 1,987,083 2,698,129 711,046
Total revenues 2,747,966 3,832,613 1,084,647
Expenditures
Instruction;
Regular Ed programs 623,443 744,073 (120,630)
Special Ed programs 2,000 1,367 633
Other instructional programs 048,068 1,148,646 (200,578)
Special programs 124,235 290,745 (166,510)
Adult Ed programs 54,620 54,249 371
Support services:
Pupil support 43,536 22,940 20,596
Instructional staff support 470,414 733,328 (262,914)
General administration 2,100 544 1,556
School administration 94,940 466,969 (372,029)
Operation and maintenance of plant 20,483 14 491 5,992
Pupil transportation 351,516 264,429 87,087
Food Service 0 8,445 (8,4495)
Total expenditures 2,739,399 3,750,226 (1,014,871)
Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures 12,611 82,387 69,776
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers out (12,611) (82,387) (69,776)
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses 0 0 0
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 0 0 0
Fund Balance, End of Year 0 ), 0

73



Exhibit 11
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

8G Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Varnance
From
Budget Actual Budget
Revenues
State sources-other $622,182 $600,640 ($21,542)
Total Revenues 622,182 600,640 (21,542)
Expenditures
Instruction:
Regular Ed programs 414,114 389,768 24,346
Special Ed programs 0 2,213 (2,213)
Special programs 123,592 122,308 1,284
Support services:
Instructionat staff support 76,614 79,225 (2,611)
Operations and maintenance of plant 51 0 51
General administration 0 36 (36)
Pupil transportation 7,811 7,090 721
Total Expenditures 622,182 600,640 21,542
Excess of Revenues Over
Expenditures 0 0 0
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 0 0 0
Fund Balance, £End of Year $0 $0 $0
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

School Food Service Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Revenues
L ocal sources:
Earnings on investments
Food service
Other
State sources - Equalization
Federal sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Food service

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Uses

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year-As Restated

Fund Balance, End of Year

Budget

$90,000
2,800,000
72,453
1,183,518
5,150,000

Actual

$73,251
2,746,381
74,824
1,183,518
2,505,771

9,295,971

0,583,745

11,177,693

11,037,518

11,177,693

11,037,518

(1,881,722)

1,992,650

(218,000)

1,374,650

(1,453,773)

1,592,650
(216,306)

(507,072)

3,074,038

$2,566,966

75

1,376,344

(77.429)

3,071,438

$2,994 009

Exhibit 12

Variance
From
Budget

($16,749)

(53,619)
2,371

0
355,771

287,774

140,175

140,175

427,949

1,694

1,694

429,643

(2.600)

$427,043




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Community Education Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Revenues

Local sources:
Rentals, leases and royailties
Tuition
Federal Sources
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Community service programs

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Uses

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Budget

Actual

Exhibit 13

Variance
From

Budget

$3,000
725,000
0
14,200

$3,420
778,694
5,590
21,821

742,200

609,525

1,191,950

921,761

1,191,950

921,761

(449,750)

140,000

(309,750)

309,748

(112,236)

140,000

27,764

309,748

($2)
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$337,512

$420
53,604
5,500
7,621

67,325

270,189

270,189

337,514

337,514

0

$337.514
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
investments

Receivables
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payabie
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities
Equity:

Fund balances:
Reserved for debt service

Unreserved, undesignated

Total Equty

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2001

Sales Tax Bond Sales Tax Bond

____Sinking Reserve
$624,580 $1,857,827
0 0
0 0
165,833 0
$790,413 $1,857,827
$0 $0
0 0
0 _ 7,827
0 7,827
790,413 1,850,000
0 0
790,413 1,850,000
$790,413 $1,857,827
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Certificate
Sinking

$6,144
0
0
0

$6,144

8,144

6,144

$6,144




Exhibit 14

Parishwide Totals
School District (Memorandum Only)

No. 12 2002 2001
$9,017,648 $11.506,199 $10.103,605
105,813 105,813 0
256,131 256,131 221 877
0 165,833 0
$9,379,59§ §12,D33,976 $10,325,482
$13,389 $13,389 $11,989
63, 996 63,996 0
0 T,BZZ__ 7,827
77,385 85,212 19,816
9,302,207 11,848,764 10,305,666
0 0 0
9,302,207 11,948,764 10,305,666
$9, 379,592 $12,033,976 $10,325,482
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD I
Covington, Louisiana
NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS '
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2001
Sales Tax Bond Sales Tax Bond Certificate l
Sinking Reserve Sinking
Revenues l
 ocal sources:
Taxes-ad valorem $0 $0 $0
Earnings on investments 26,428 51,931 189 l
Total Revenues 26,428 51,931 189
Expenditures l
Debt Service:
Support services-administration 0 0 0
Issuance costs 0 0 0
Principal Retirement 1,450,000 0 790,000
Interest and bank charges 583,358 0 82,755
Other 0 0 0
Total Expenditures 2,033,358 0 872,755 l
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (2,006,930) 51,931 (872,566)
Other Financing Sources l
Payments to escrow agent from bond proceeds 0 0 0
Proceeds from bond sale 0 0 0
Accrued interest on issued bonds 0 0 0
Operating transfers in 1,990,000 0 860,000
Operating transfers out O (61,931) 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other I
Financing Sources Over Expenditures {(16,930) 0 (12,566)
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 807,343 1,850,000 18,710 l
Fund Balances, End of Year $790,413 $1,850,000 $6,144 '
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Exhibit 15

Parishwide Totals
School District {(Memo randum Cnly)
No. 12 2002 2001

$14,098,713 $14,098,713 $13,270,712
192,075 270,623 543,872
14,290,788 14,369,336 13,814,584
450,154 450,154 416,465
13,335 13,335 0
6,725,000 8,965,000 9,065,000
5,440,277 6,106,390 6,624,593
0 _ 0 0
12,628,766 15,534,879 16,106,058

1,662,022 {1,165,543) (2.291,474)
(3.417,294) (3,417,294) 0
3,410,000 3,410,000 0
17,866 17,866 0
0 2,850,000 2,850,000

0 (51.931) (113,000)
1,672,594 1,643,098 445 526
7,629,613 10,305,666 9,860,140
$SB:‘,.'.’:_{J:2,2[JZ'= $11,948,764 $10,305,666
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Sales Tax Bond Sinking Debt Service Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Revenues
Earnings on investments

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and bank charges
Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in

Total Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Budget

$25,000

25,000

Actual_q

$26,428

26,428

1,450,000
085,105

1,450,000
583,358

2,035,105

(2,010,105)

1,990,000

2,033,358

1,990,000

(20,105)

807,343

(2,006,930)

1,890,000

1,890,000

(16,930)

807,343

$787,238

81
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Variance
From

Budget

51,428

1,428

1,747

1,747

3,175

3,175

$3,175




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Sales Tax Bond Reserve Debt Service Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2001

Revenues
Earnings on investments

Total Revenues

Other Financing Sources (Lises)
Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues Over
Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

_Budget

$50,000

50,000

Actual

$51,931

01,931

(50,000)

(50,000)

0

1,850,000

51,931

21,931

$1,850,000

0

1,850,000

$1,850,000

Exhibit 1

Varnance
From

Budget

$1,931

1,931

(1,931)

— (1,931




Exhibit 18
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Certificates Sinking Debt Service Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Variance
From
Budget Actual ___Budget
Revenues
Earnings on investments | $175 $189 $14
Total Revenues 175 189 14
Expenditures
Debt service:
Principal retirement 790,000 790,000 0
Interest and bank charges 83,250 82,755 495
Total Expenditures 873,250 872,755 495
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (873,075) (872,566) 509
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in 860,000 860,000 0
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses (13,075) (12,566) 509
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 18,710 18,710 0
Fund Balance, End of Year $5,635 $6,144 3509
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Parishwide School District No. 12 Debt Service Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Revenues

Local sources:
Taxes-ad valorem
Earnings on investments

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Support services-general administration
Debt service:
Issuance Costs
Principal retirement
Interest and bank charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) Revnues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (lUses)
Payment to Escrow Agent from Bond Proceeds
Proceeds From Sale of Bonds
Accrued Interest on Issued Bonds
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess (Deficiency) Revenues
Over Expenditures and Other Sources (Uses)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Budget

$13,790,378
175,000

13,965,378

454,188

31,000
6,725,000
0,440,277

Actual _

14,098,713
192,075

Exhibit 19

Variance
From

Budget

308,335
17,075

14,290,788

12,650,465

450,154

13,335
6,725,000
5,440,277

325,410

4,034

17,665
0

0

1,314,913

(3,417,294)
3,410,000

15,000

12,628,766

21,699

7,706

1,662,022

(3,417,294)

3,410,000
17,866

1,322,619

7,629,613

10,572

347,109

2,566

2,866

$8,952 232

1,672,594

7,629,613

349,975

0

$9,302,207

$349,975




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

Combhining Balance Sheet-NON GAAP
June 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2001

$50 Million $25 Million Roofing
Construction Construction Construction
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $510,645 $2,473,263 $1.,123,477
investments 0 105,242 52,402
Receivables 0 0 0
Due from other funds 0 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS $510,645 $2,578,505 $1,175,879
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $2,040 $0 $13,650
Retainage payable 174,804 37,688 59,767
Due to other funds 0 0 0
Total Liabilities 176,844 37,688 73,417
Equity:
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances 0 69,675 70,374
Unreserved, undesignated 333,801 2,471,142 1,032,088
Total Equity 333,801 2,540,817 1,102,462
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $510,645 $2,578,505 $1,175,879

85

- —————— ——— |




Exhibit 20

Totals
Parishwide (Mem orandum Only)
Construction 2002 2001
$2,661,908 $6,769,293 $10,156,773
52,402 210,046 0
0 0 10,488
0 ] 0 _ 70,9840
32,714,310 __ 396,979,339 $10,238,201
$237,893 $253,583 $118,432
190,991 463,250 337,949
693 693 286,111
429,577 117,526 742,492
456,613 596,662 959,890
_1.828,120 5,665,151 __B8,535819
2,284,733 6,261,813 9,495,709
$2,714,310 $6,979,339 $10,238,201

=

e —

e — Ry p—
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS-NON GAAP

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2001

$50 Mitlion $25 Million Roofing
Construction Construction Construction

Revenues
Local sources:

Earnings on investments $18,301 $134,392 $33,755

Other 0 0 0
Total Revenues 18,301 134,392 33,755
Expenditures
Facilities acquisition and construction:

Site improvements

Construction contracts 29,820 2,389,275 1,147,755

Architect and engineers 65,998 87,689 64,208

Land purchases 0 0 0

Equipment 0 102,919 0

Other 118 272 826
Total Expenditures 95,936 2,580,165 1,212,789
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures (77,635) (2,445,763) (1,179,034)
Other Financing Sources

Operating transfers in 0 0 1,250,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over Expenditures (77,635) (2.445,763) 70,966
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (as restated) 411,436 4 986,580 1,031,496
Fund Balances, End of Year $333,801 $2,540.817 $1,102 462
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Parishwide
Construction

Totals

(Memorandum Only)

Exhibit 21

$79,505

2002

$265,953
0

2001

79,505

265,953

$619,043
0

833.915
1,516,822
203,796
0

196,436

0

2,750,969

833,915
5,083,672
421,691

0

299,355

1,216

(2,671,464)

1,890,000

6,639,849

619,043

514,836
2,738,930
397,576

0

107,848
9,313

(781,464)

3,066,197

(6,373,896)

3,140,000

3,768,509

(3,149,466)

2,640,000

(3,233,896)

9,495,709

(509,466)

10,005,175

$2,284,733

$6,261,813

$9,495,709
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Exhibit 22
ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

$50 Mitlion Construction Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
{(Non-GAAP Basis)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Varnance
From
Budget Actual Budget

Revenues

Earnings on investments $17.500 $18,301 $801
Total Revenues 17,500 18,301 _ 801
Expenditures
Facilities acquisition and construction:

Construction contracts 200,000 29.820 170,180

Architects and engineers 5,500 432 5,068

Equipment 160,000 0 150,000

Other 833 118 _715
Total Expenditures 356,333 30370 325,963
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (338,833) (12,069) 326,764
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year (as restated) 338,833 345,870 7,037
Fund Balance, End of Year $0 $333,801 $333,801
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

$25 Million Construction Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
{(Non-GAAP Basis)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Actual

| Budget

$134,392

Exhibit 23

Variance

From

$4,392

134,392

272
2,222,014
75,427
102,919

0

2,400,632

(2,266,240)

4,737,382

Budget

Revenues

Earnings on investments $130,000
Total Revenues 130,000
Expenditures
Facilities acquisition and construction:

|.egal Services 5,000

Construction contracts 3,000,000

Architects and engineers 200,000

Equipment 750,000

Other 5,000
Total Expenditures 3,960,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (3,830.000)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 4,737,382
Fund Balance, End of Year $907,382

90

$2,471,142

4,392

4,728
777,986
124,573
647,081
_ 5,000

1,559,368

1,663,760

0

$1,563,760



Revenues

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Reroofing Construction Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

(Non-GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Earnings on investments

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Factilities acquisition and construction:
Construction contracts

Architects and engineers

Other

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over Expendifures and Other Uses

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

01

Budget

$33,000

Actual

33,000

$33,755

2,000,000
140,000
2,000

33,755

2,142,000

1,214,016
68,321
826

(2,109,000)

1,283,163

1,250,000

(1,249,408)

1,250,000

1,250,000

Exhibit 24

Variance
From
Budget

$755

759

785,984
71,679
1,174

858,837

859,592

(859,000)

1,031,496

1,250,000

$172,496

592

1,031,496

51,032,088

859,592

0

$859,592

e




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Parishwide Construction Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
{(Non-GAAP Basis)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Actual

$79,505

79,505

833,915
1,228,900
303,204
196,436

2,562,455

(2,482,950)

1,890,000

1,890,000

Budget
Revenues

Earnings on investments $78,000
Total Revenues 78,000
Expenditures
Facilities acquisition and construction:

Site improvements 1,200,000

Construction contracts 1,689,000

Architects and engineers 300,000

Equipment 200,000
Total Expenditures 3,385,000
Excess (Deficiency) (3,307,000)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating transfers in 1,890,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,890,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses (1,417,000)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 2,421,070
Fund Balance, End of Year $1,004,070

92

(592,950)

2,421,070

Exhibit 25

Varnance

From

Budget

$1,505

1,505

366,085

456,100
(3,204)

3,564

822,545

824,050

$1,828,120

824,050

0

$824,050




Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds

Total Assets

L.iabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Liability for
self-insurance losses
Claims liability

Total Liabihties

Net Assets
Restricted for employee benefits
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets (as restated)

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOQOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2002

Workers'

Compensation

$1,702,032
10,008
375

$1,712,415

L ]

$47,753
0

1,067,919
0

Risk

Management

$3,682,464
0
54,235

1,115,672

$3,736,699

$11,090
14,939

0
605,576

Total
June 30,
2002

Exhibit 26

$5,384,456
10,008
54,610

596,743
0

631,605

$5,449,114

$58,843
14,939

1,067,919
603,576

596,743

0
3,105,094

1,747,277

3,105,094

996,743
3,105,094

$1,712,415

93

$3,736,699

3,701,837

$5,449,114




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Exhibit 27

Proprietary Fund Type - Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses , and
Changes In Net Assets

For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Operating Revenue
Employer contributions
Insurance proceeds

Total operating revenue

Operating Expenses
Administrative
Contractual services
Premium payments
Benefit Payments
Claims
Increase (Decrease) in provision ¢
self-insurance losses

Workers'

Compensation

$1,671,646
50,000

1,721,646

48,874
226,526
213,661

1,930,360
0

189,061

Total operating expenses

2,608,482

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenue
Earnings on investments

Total Non-Operating Revenue

(886,836)

02,270

92,270

Changes in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year (as i«

(834,566)

1,431,309

Net Assets, End of Year

$596,743

Risk
Management

$1,536,599
75,350

Total
June 30,
2002

$3,208,245
125,350

1,611,949

60,118
86,023
860,962
0
303,143

(294,424)

3,333,595

108,992
312,548
1,074,623
1,930,360
303,143

(105,363)

1,015,822

3,624,304

996,127

91,051

(290,709)

143,321

91,051

143,321

687,178

2417916

$3,105,094

(147,388)

3,849 225

$3,701,837




Exhibit 28

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Proprietary Fund Type - internal Service Fund
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Total
Workers' Risk June 30,
Compensation Management 2002
Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash receipts from:
empioyer contributions $1,671,646 $1,5636,599 $3,208,245
insurance proceeds 50,000 75,350 $125,350

Cash payments for:

Benefits and claims {1,540,511) (343,510) ($1,884,021)
Insurance premiums (213,661) (860,962) ($1,074,623)
Other (275,400) (146,141) ($421,541)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (307,926) 261,336 ~ (46,590)
Cash Provided by Investing Activities
Earnings on investments 52,270 91,051 $143,321
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents (255,656) 392,387 96,731
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,957,688 3,330,077 $5,287,765
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $1,702,032 $3,682,464 $5,384,496
Reconcihation of operating income (loss) {0 net cash provided {used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) ($886,838) 596,127 (290,709)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash used by operating activities:
Increase (Decrease) in provision for
self insurance losses 189,061 (294,424) (105,363)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)} decrease in receivables 343,922 (48,974) 294,948
Increase (decrease) in payables 45,927 8,607 54,534
Decrease in deferred revenue
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities ($307,926) $261,336 ($46,590)
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Exhibif 29

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND

Schedule of Changes in Deposits
By School
For the Yoar Ended June 30, 2002

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
School 2001 Additions Deducfions 2002
Abita Springs Elementary $31.949 $61,175 $64,201 $28,923
Abney Elementary 47 447 150,445 134,200 63,692
Alton Elementary 7,590 15,338 19,774 3,154
Bayou Woods Elementary 31,624 68,239 54,648 45215
Bonne Ecole Elementary 60,583 144,562 147,617 57.528
Brock Elementary 27,916 59,376 35424 51,868
Chahta-ima Elementary 3,336 50,864 48,799 5,401
Covington Elementary 45649 105,940 105,136 46 453
Cypress Cove Elementary 29,930 146,735 150,867 25,798
Florida Ave. Elementary 62,665 82,425 80,232 64 858
Folsom Elementary 21,576 67,731 69,980 19,327
Honey Island Elementary 22,808 149,904 132,956 39,754
Lyon Elementary 34,732 115,147 108,166 41,713
Madisonville Elementary 18,669 103.871 91,951 30,589
Magnolia Trace Elementary 23,468 186,050 148,905 60,613
Mandeville Elementary 86,580 157,416 144,908 99 088
Pontcharirain Elementary 95 990 223,265 210,801 108,454
Riverside Elementary 19,339 79,648 83,045 15,942
Whispering Forest Elementary 51,785 136,47S 126,457 61,807
Woodlake Elementary 57.879 182,371 188,752 51,491
Covington Pathways 1411 17,921 16,781 2,551
Stidell Pathways 500 3,553 942 3,111
Abita Springs Middle 39,004 114,412 102,716 50.790
Bayou Lacombe Middle 8,294 31,842 29,930 10,206
Carolyn Park Middle 56,459 153,173 164,197 45435
l.ake Harbor Middle 0 196.281 161,451 34,830
Little Oak Middle 21,599 228,189 230,629 19,159
Mandeville Middie 94,752 220.458 231,900 83,310
Pine View Middle 6,106 113,058 91,982 27 182
Schoen, C.J. Middle 1,569 1,564 3.163 0
Tchefuncte Middie 82,649 218,766 235,782 65,633
Boyet Jr. High 76,257 135,463 152,978 58,742
Clearwood Jr. High 50,505 133,925 129,960 b4 470
Fifth Ward Jr. High 63,264 160,559 162,377 61,446
Folsom Jr. High 29,727 89,232 85,206 33,753
Fontainebleau Jr. High 89,728 300,909 302,494 88,143
Laee Road Jr. High 18,339 195,847 189,308 24,878
Madisonville Jr. High 27,181 162,602 178,393 11.390
Mandeville Jr. BHigh 80,680 232 411 249,040 64 051
Peard River Jr. High 26.205 80,727 85,669 21,263
Pitcher Jr. High 33,292 124,817 119,755 38,354
St. Tammany Jr. High 73,064 135,503 147 804 60,763
Sixth Ward Jr. High 33,367 74,079 66,441 41,005
Slidell Jr. High 208,083 252,320 230,627 229,786
Covington High 238.662 719,328 685,743 272 247
Fontainebleau High 366,648 821812 692 431 496,029
Mandevitie High 252 4860 765,661 773,950 244 171
Northshore High 232,936 677,710 635,835 274,811
Pearl River High 123,533 282,746 295,558 110,721
Salmen High 215,484 422 079 430,747 206,816
Slidell High 332,575 780,283 795,397 317,461
TOTAL $3,665,946 $10,134,241 $9,826,012 $3,974,175
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

COVINGTON, LOUISIANA

Government-wide Expenses by Function
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2001

Governmental Activities,
Instruction:
Regular programs
Special ed. programs
Vocational ed. programs
Other instructional programs
Special programs
Adult ed. programs
Support services:
Pupil support
Instructional staff support
General administration
School administration
Business administration
Operation and maintenance of plant
Pupil transportaion
Central services
Food services
Unallocated depreciation expense
Community service programs
Interast on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Note: The above information is available only for the years shown.

o7

June 30,
2002

$87,253,791
43,764,346
4,624,007
8,683,473
4,121,088
561,205

9,805,615
9,809,344
4,271,971
12,747,955
1,646,685
18,261,133
15,137,579
2,367,639
13,241,043
7,641,343
494 973
6,242 420

$251,175,610

Table 1

June 30,
2001

$84,469,462
38,209,685
4,379,030
6,950,731
3,817,801
437,420

8,817,759
8,793,830
3,847,394
11,115,928
1,637,047
17,583,421
13,446,369
1,948,164
12,273,048
6,480,684
892,720
6,624,593

$231,725,086




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

COVINGTON, LOUISIANA

Government-wide Revenues
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

Program Revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Sales and use taxes
State revenue sharing
Minimum foundation program
Interests and investment earnings
Other miscellaneous

Total governmental activities

Note: The above information is available only for the years shown.

98

June 30,
2002

$3,733,773
20,438,008
752,333

48,344,307
52,847,766
1,799,322
124,341,219
3,499,995

6,479,498

$262,236,221

Table 2

June 30,
2001

$3,658,505
15,817,481
714,985

45,507,454
48,795,600
1,802,063
117,742,209
7,305,887

6,617,265

$247,961,449




Fiscal
year
1993
1694
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

General Fund Expenditures by Function

Covington, Louisiana

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Instruction
Regular Special
Ed Ed Other

Programs Frograms Frograms
$46,931,281 $17,156,796 $4.802,657
49,476,931 19,221,373 5,204,179
54 674,839 21,853,260 6,125,842
57,176,090 24,119,662 6,693,220
62,538,271 27452174 7,357,686
68,662,667 30,353,316 8,303,694
72,433,920 32,754 851 9,027,966
73,785,154 34,445,565 9,878,663
80,263,966 35,661,404 10,992,005
81,623,426 39,304,082 12,082,853

(Unaudited) I
Support Services
Pupil Instructional I
Support Staff General School Business
Services Support Administration Administration  Administration
$4,359,334 $3,851,302 $1,679,544 $6,807,562 $809,538 l
4,621,729 4,315,790 2,076,696 7.255,193 876,286
5,216,295 4825474 2,021,695 8,192,367 1,059,538
5AT4 147 4.938.319 2,566,886 8,740,377 1,096,043
6.050,112 5,519,268 2,308,558 10,009,169 1,149,804 l
6,650,424 5.966,842 2,318,068 10,401,807 1,252,376
7,281,105 5,432,566 2,465,956 10,721,643 1,399,455
7,352,035 6,703,377 2,650,489 10,890,055 1,486,139
7,665,798 6,560,117 2,772,849 10,901,678 1,586,630 I
8,431,597 7,463,799 3,027,343 11,896,939 1,582,030
99




100

Operation and Community Facilities
Maintenance of Pupil Central Food Service Acquisition and
Plant Transportation Activities Service Programs Construction Debt Service Total

$9,817,983 $7,949,159 $914,315 $224 944 $17.826 $119.329 $124,766 $105,566,336
10,408,114 8,279,239 1,393,556 643,288 28911 103,234 41,283 113,945,802
11,595,233 8.924,2G3 1,118,305 690,666 27,064 154,225 67,724 126,546,790
12,408,116 9,678,857 1,253,259 /52,614 36,788 145,711 135,080,089
13,285,388 10,628,069 1,384,746 872,370 37.885 556,912 149,160,412
14,022,575 11,190,562 1,535,856 881,017 33.879 201,684 161,774,767
14,563,643 11,684,723 1,758,373 1,032,479 33,960 199,161 171,789,801
14,789,523 12,008,109 1,942,967 1,102,879 43,751 385,336 177,464,042
16,917,530 13,088,088 1,813,426 1,441,995 40,758 223,103 189,919,347
17,333,312 14,270,323 2,208,452 1,641,058 42,604 197,401 201,105,219




Fiscal
Year

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Loulsiana

General Fund Revenues by Source
LLast Ten Fiscal Years

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1998
2000
2001
2002

State Saources

(Unaudited)
L ocal Sources
Eamings

Ad Valorem On
Taxes Tuition Investments Other Equalization
15,927,847 127,440 305,332 440,930 63,351,967
17,190,593 125,251 431,975 364,158 69,921,213
19,032,717 149,401 805,002 427,091 76,660,386
20,124,363 147,340 1,102,542 429,438 81,569,868
24,177,250 154,412 1,375,408 446,336 092.312,015
25,990,794 169,963 1,604,305 377,795 99,195,469
26,534,959 207,170 1,958,052 573,862 106,736,966
29,246,334 198,203 2,660,879 652,491 111,640,762
32,236,742 210,574 3,301,445 624,917 116,558,691
34,245,594 208,698 1.860,064 674,423 123,157,701

101

Contributions
to Teachers'

Retirement

223,120
202,627
190,291
178,803
169,212
160,037
157,280
132,408
111,340
114,847




Table 4
Professional ]

Revenue Improvement Federal

sharing Program Other Sources Total
1,514,148 1,393,496 785,952 265,412 84,335,644
1,541,151 1,332,784 1,205,323 265,425 892,580,500
1,569,300 1,292,745 2,176,624 347,557 103,651,114
1,650,879 1,256,489 642,343 252,740 107,354,805
1,631,845 1,200,771 1,069,436 267,077 122,803,762
1,721,553 1,153,762 2,405,952 334,481 133,114,111
1,781,976 1,130,613 2,785,670 305,664 142,172,212
1,753,710 1,018,771 1,576,656 475,339 149,355,553
1.802,063 929,037 1,748,744 531,058 158,054,611
1,799,322 885,409 1,347,704 583,265 164,877,027
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Table b

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{Unaudited)
Percentage Percentage of
of Total Current Current Year
Current Year Current Year Year Outstanding
Fiscal Total Tax Tax Levy Total Tax Collections Qutstanding Taxes to
Year Levy Collections (1) Collections {1} to Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy
1993 $22,249,929 $21,238,827 $22,499,923 95.1% $1,011,102 4.5%
1994 24 221,576 23,031,420 24 272 958 95.1% 1,190,156 4 9%
1995 26,111,200 25,686,081 26,881,093 98.4% 425,119 1.6%
1996 28,304,369 27,432,575 28,419,028 96.9% 871,794 3.1%
1997 33,989,981 32,981,367 34,136,248 97.0% 1,008 614 3.0%
1998 37,323,704 39,451,881 36,698,311 95.0% 1,871,823 5.0%
1999 37,921,259 36,371,394 37,543,149 95.9% 1,549,565 4.1%
2000 41,120,255 39,759,869 41,292,355 96.7% 1,660,386 3.3%
2001 46,310,731 44,240,854 45,507 454 95.5% 2,069,877 4.5%
2002 49,560,110 47,180,514 48,344,307 95.1% 2,379,596 4.9%

(1) Source: St. Tammany Tax Collector's Office
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Table 6
l ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
l Last Ten Fiscal Years
{Unaudited)
l Commetcial Percentage of
and Qther Total Total Total Assessed
Real Estate Property Total Homestead Assessed Estimated Value to Total
l Fiscal Assessed Assessed Assessed Exemption Value Actual Estimated
Year Value Value Value Value Taxed Value Actual Value
1993 $374.560,203 $95,970,349 $470,530,552 $215,077,907 $255,452 645 $4.246,180.037 11.1%
l 1994 398,500,809 104,160,566 502,661,475 224 572,278 278,089,197 4,534 965,530 11.1%
1995 420,818,901 115,744,760 536,563,661 236,779,583 299,784,078 4 829 278,397 11.1%
1996 453,039,166 124,016.650 577,055,816 252,001,848 324,963,968 5,201,903,433 11.1%
1997 532,174,889 134,343,983 666,518,872 276,278,615 390,240,857 6,058,688,723 11.0%
1998 573,279,924 147,820,260 721,100,184 292,584,805 428,515,379 6,552.878,573 11.0%
1999 583,140,747 160,875,374 744,016,121 308,640,221 435,375,900 6,733,548,083 11.0%
2000 615,274,982 178,671,405 793,946,387 321,842,771 472,103 616 7,159,968,947 11.1%
2001 677,730,005 193,753,558 871,483,563 339,787,718 531,695,845 7,872.082,277 11.1%
2002 722,448,235 203,144,702 025,592,937 356,569,968 569,022,969 8.043,876,643 11.5%
l Source: St. Tammany Parish Assessor’s Office
P
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Property Tax Rates {per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)
All Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Other Governments

{Parishwide)
Law
Fiscal School Board  Parish Council Enforcement Assessor
Year Millage Millage Millage Millage
1993 87.10 18.35 12.94 3.21
1994 87.10 18.35 12.94 3.21
1995 87.10 18.35 12.94 3.21
1996 87.10 18.35 12.94 3.21
1997 8710 20.82 12.94 3.21
1998 87.10 17.76 12.94 3.05
1999 87.10 17.76 12.94 3.05
2000 87.10 19.76 12.94 3.05
2001 87.10 18.95 12.94 3.00
2002 87.10 16.67 12.94 3.21

Source: Respective Taxing Jurisdiction
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Table 7
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Other Governments

(Special Districts)
City of City of City of City of City of City of

Abita Springs Covington Madiscnville Mandeville Pearl River Slidell

Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Millage Other
19.18 19.60 12.80 18.25 583 36.44 393.83
19.18 18.60 13.80 18.25 5.83 35.11 395.64
19.18 18.25 11.30 19.18 5.83 33.93 398.62
19.18 26.80 11.30 17.95 5.83 33.93 428.28
19.70 24 55 11.52 17.60 5.83 37.54 433,18
15.72 24.55 11.52 17.30 5.83 37.04 437.70
156.72 24.55 11.52 16.95 5.83 36.62 437.84
15.72 24.55 11.52 16.80 5.83 36.25 441 26
15.72 24.15 11.63 16.40 5.83 3479 460.69
17.86 24.15 11.63 16.30 10.00 34.64 458.94



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Taxpayer

Central La. Elec. Co.

BellSouth Communications
Hibernia National Bank
Wash.-St. Tarnmany Elect.
ATMOS Energy of Louisiana
Tri-States NGL Pipeline, LLC
Banc One Management Corp.
EPIC Development, Inc.
McKesson Corp.

Renaissance Media Group LLC

Source: St. Tammany Parish Assessor's Office

Covington, Louisiana

Principal Taxpayers

June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

Type of Business

Utility

Telephone

Bank

Utility

Utitity

Pipeline

Bank

Real Estate
Warehousing
Communications

107

Fiscal Year
2002
Assessed
Valuation

$30,341.400
20,228,670
8,888,410
4340470
4,211,190
4,010,380
3,874,440
3,718,560
3,447,880
3,272,260

$86,333.660

Percentage
of Total
Assessed
Valuation

3.28%
2.19%
0.98%
0.47%
0.45%
0.43%
0.42%
0.40%
0.37%
0.35%

9.33%

———— e—— e ——




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 2002

Assessed valuations:

Taxable assessed value
Add back:
Exempt property

Total assessed value

L egal debt margin:
Debt limitation-35 percent
of total assessed value

Less:

Debt applicable to limitation:

Total general obligation
bonded debt

Less: Amount available
for repayment of general
obligation bonds

Total generai obligation debt
applicable to imitation

Legal debt margin

(Unaudited)

$143.820,000

9,302,207
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Table 9

$569,002,159

356,568,288

$925,570, 447

$323,949,656

134,517,793

$189,431,863




Table 10

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

State Support and Local Suppoit

Per Student
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{(Unaudited)
State Total Total Local
Fiscal Number of State Support per Student Cost per Local Support per
Year Students Support{1) Student Expenditures(1) Student Support{1) Student
1993 29,282 $67.606,305 $2 343 $117,639,147 34,017 $44,448 991 $1,518
1994 30,504 74,732,474 2450 128,290,620 4.206 49,726,002 1,630
1995 31,412 83,704,980 2,665 141,910,870 4518 54,184,671 1,725
1956 31,852 87,141,280 2,736 150,924,250 4,738 61,056,129 1,917
1997 32,677 98,043,602 3,000 165,721,221 5.071 66,670,666 2,040
1998 32,559 107,633,632 3,306 181,031,180 5,560 72,555,734 2,228
199% 32,567 115,251,077 3,539 191,633,809 5,884 75,861,509 2,329
2000 32,495 118,502,516 3,647 199,146,081 6,129 84,146 447 2,580
2001 32,680 123,548,862 3,781 212,351,734 6,498 88,985,360 2,723
2002 32,870 124,341,219 3,783 228,094,818 6,939 03,651,098 2,849

(1) Consists of General Fund and Special Revenue Funds.
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Table 11

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Ratio of Net General Obligation Dabt
To Assessed Value and Net
Bonded Debt per Capita and Per Student
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{Unaudited)
Percentage of

Less Net Bonded Debt Net Bonded  Net Bonded

Fiscal Number of Assessed Gross Bonded Debt Service Net Bonded to Assessed Debt per Debt par

Year Population(1} Students Value{2) Debl(3) Fund{4) Debt Value Capita Student
1993 153,351 29,282 $470,530,552 $50,320,000 $2,804 369 $47.515,631 10.1 $310 $1,623
1994 155,990 20,504 502 661,475 60,260,000 2,743,386 57,516,614 11.4 369 1,886
1995 164,394 31,412 536,563,661 57,165,000 3,536,974 53,628,026 10.0 326 1,707
1996 170,321 31,852 577,055 816 53.695.000 4,762,929 48,932,071 8.5 287 1,936
1997 174,856 32,677 666,518,872 75,130,000 6.617.872 68,512,128 10.3 392 2,097
1998 180,692 32,559 721,100,184 70,655,000 8,450,210 62,204 790 8.6 344 1,911
1999 183,727 32,567 744,016,121 120,230,000 8.108,246 112,121,754 151 610 3,443
2000 188,053 32,495 793,946,387 113,520,000 7,230,791 106,289,209 13.4 o565 3,271
2001 191,268 32,680 871,483,563 106,550,000 7.629.613 98,920,387 114 517 3,027
2002 193,466 32,870 925,570,447 143,820,000 9,302,207 134,517,793 14.5 695 4 092

(1} Source: Louisiana Technical University
(2) From Table 9
(3) General obligation bonds

{4) Amount available for repayment of general ocbligation bonds
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Fiscal
Year

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Percentage of Annual Debt Service Expenditures
For General Bonded Debt to

Principal

1993
1994

1995

1096
1997

1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

$4,065,000

3,710,000
4,115,000
4,975,000
5,630,000
6,215,000
7,740,000
8,680,000
9,065,000
8,965,000

Total General Fund Expenditures

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{Unaudited)
Total Debt
Interest Service
$4.,020,050 $8,085,050
4,451,363 3,161,363
4,664,815 8.779.815
4927773 9,902,773
5,532,069 11,162,069
5,544 845 11,759,845
5,964,317 13,704,317
7,124,348 15,804,348
6,616,931 15,681,931
6,106,390 15,071,390

111

Total
Generatl Fund
Expenditures

Tabile 12

Percentage of
Debt Service
to General Fund
Expenditures

$105,566,426
113,945,802
126,546,790
135,080,089
149,160,412
161,774,767
171,789,801
177,464,042
189,919,347
201,105,219

7.66%
7.16%
6.94%
7.33%
7.48%
7.27%
7.98%
8.91%
8.26%
7.49%




Computation of Direct and Overlapping General Bonded Debt

Jurisdiction

Direct:
St. Tammany Parish
School Board
Overlapping:
City of Abita Springs
City of Covington
City of Mandeville
City of Slidell
Parish Council
Total Overlapping

Total

* As of 12/31/01
** As of 8/31/02

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

June 30, 2002

General
Obligation
Bonded Debt
Outstanding

$143,820,000

717,000
1,825,000
13,475,000
10,130,687
275,000
26,422 687

$170,242,687

Source: Respective government entities

(Unaudited)

i
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Percentage
Applicable
to
Government

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Table 13

Amount
Applicable
to
Government

$143,820,000

717,000
1,825,000
13,475,000
10,130,687
275,000
26,422 687

$170,242,687



Fiscal
_Year

16992
1993
1954
1935
1996
1997
1968
1599
2000
2001
2002

(1) Source: touisiana Technical University

Population{1}

148,137
153,351
155,990
164.394
170,321
174,856
180,602
183,727
188,053
191,268
193,466

Total

Number of
Students

32,476
32,840
34,640
35,768
36,772
37,801
37,903
38,104
38,349
38,747
38,608

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{(Unaudited)
Public Schools
Percentage
of Number of
Number of Students to
Students Total Students
28,522 87.8
29 282 89.2
30, 504 £8.1
31,412 87.8
31,852 86.6
32,677 86.4
32,559 859
32,567 85.5
32,495 84.7
32,680 §4.3
32,870 85.1
113

Table 14
Private Schools
Percentage
of Number of
Number of Students to
Students Total Students
3 954 12.2
3.558 10.8
4,136 11.9
4 356 12.2
4,920 13.4
5124 13.6
5,344 14.1
5.537 14.5
5,854 15.3
6,067 15.6
5,738 14.9




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Property Value and Bank Deposits
Last Ten Calendar Years

(Unaudited)
Estimated
Actual
Calendar Property

Year Value
1992 $4,246,180,037
1993 4,534 965,530
1994 4,829,278,397
1995 5,201,903,433
1996 6,058,688,723
1997 6,552,878,573
1998 6,733,5648,083
1999 7,159,968,947
2000 7,872,082,277
2001 8,043,876,643

(1)

Consists of deposit liabilities of major banks
and savings and loan institutions domiciled in
St. Tammany Pansh.

Source: Annual Report of the Office Of Financial
Institutions, State of Louisiana.

Note-Does not include construction because neither the

parish nor the numerous municipal governing
authorities maintain this information.
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Table 15

Bank

Degositsg 1 )

$302,235,000
294,135,000
288,612,000
33,948,000
37,082,000
41,562,000
71,012,000
104,745,000
133,135,000
160,466,000



ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board Members
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

Ray A. Alfred

E. Roth Allen
Robert Broome
Donald L. Burns
Charles T. Harrell
Elizabeth Heintz
Neal M. Hennegan
Carmen Johnson
John C. Lamargque
Mary K. Bellisario
James Panks
Diane Sambola
Donald J. Villere
Patti Young

Daniel G. Zechenelly

Table 16

$9,600

9,600
9,600
9,600
9,600
9,600
9,600
9,600

10,800

9,600
9,600
9,600
9,600
9,600
9,600

$145,200

This Schedule of Compensation paid to Board Members was prepared in
compliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session
of the Louisiana Legislature. The compensation of the School Board
members is included in the general administrative expenditures of the
General Fund. in accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the
School Board Members have elected the monthly payment method of
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DEGREE

Bachelor's Degree
faster's Degree
Master's + 30
ucation Specialist
Doctorate

Totals:

ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Covington, Louisiana

Miscellaneous Statistical Data

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE

0-5
6-10

June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

NO. OF TEACHERS

1,360
854
300

25
10

2,549

NO. OF TEACHERS

509
488

Totals:

11-14
15-19
20-24
25-over

Year of incorporation:
Form of government:

Area of parish:

Regular School Days:

Population:

Elementary
Middle

Junior
Senior

e —— — o —— — —

NUMBER OF
SCHOOLS

326
344
383
499

2,549

23
-
14
7

51

1900

School Board President

1,141 square miles
182
193,466

Elementary
Middle
Junior
Senior

Table 17

% OF TOTAL

23.35%
33.50%
11.77%
0.98%
0.389%

100.00%

% OF TOTAL

19.97%
19.14%
12.79%
13.50%
15.03%
19.58%

100.00%

ENROLLMENT

10,973
4,808
7,850
9,639

32,870




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
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Postlethwaite & Nelterville

A Praless onal Accounting Corpararion
Assacand Offices i- Prne'pa (Ulirs of -he Hrirad S-ntes

WWW.pncpa.com

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Members of the
St. Tammany Parish School Board
Covinglon, Louisiana:

l We have andisted the Nnancial statements of St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School
Board). as of and for the vear ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 5, 2002, which includes an explanatory paragraph regarding the adoption of
l Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statemernts — and
AManagement s Discussion and Analysis -- for State and Local Governments, and Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
I Nonexchange Transactions.  We conducted our audit 1in accordance with auditing standards
venerally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Stundards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the
I United States.

(‘ompliance

As part of obtaining rcasonable assurance about whether the School Board’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance that are required 10 be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

[nternal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School Board’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over
tinancial reporting. Qur consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness 1s a condition in which the design or operation of one
ar more of the internal control components does not reduce to a refatively low level the risk that
misstatements in amounts that would be material 1n relation to the financial statements being
audited may occur and nol be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course
of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
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financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
noted other matters involving the mternal control over financial reporting that we have reported to
management of the School Board in a separate letter dated December 5, 2002.

This report is intended solely tor the information and usc of the Board, the School Board’s
management and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of

Loutsiana and Legislative Auditor’s Office and is not intended 1o be and should not be used by
anyone other than these spectfied parties. |

G2l B lorticl +7

December 5, 2002

a0
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Postlethwaite & Netterville

A Professional Accounting Corporation
Associated Offices in Principal Cities of the United States

WWW.pNCpa.com

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Members of the
St. Tammany Parish School Board
Covington, Louisiana:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board), with
the types of compliance requirements described in the U. 8. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2002. The School Board’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its major federal programs is the responsibility of School Board’s
management. Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the School Board’s compliance
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of comphance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and matenial effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examiming, on a test basis, evidence about the School Board’s
compiiance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opmon. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the School Board’s compliance with
those requirements.

In our opinion, the School Board complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2002. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance
with those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133 and which are described 1n the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as

items 2002-1 through 2002-6.

119

30th Floor - Energy Centre 1100 Poydras Street o New Orleans, LA 70163-3000 + Tel: 504.569.2978
2324 Severn Avenue, Suite A+ Metairie, LA 70001 <« Tel: 5048375990 +»  Fax: 504.834.3609



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the School Board 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, confracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School
Board’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on comphance and to test and report on internal control over compliance

i accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We noted a certain matter involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we
consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our
attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over
compliance that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the School Board’s ability to administer
a major federal program in accordance with the applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants. The reportable condition is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as 1tem 2002-2,

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the intemal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the nisk that noncomphance with
applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in
relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our
consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessanly
disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However,
we believe that the reportable condition described above is not a material weakness.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the School Board as of and for the year ended June
30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated December 5, 2002, which mcludes an
explanatory paragraph regarding the adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis —
for State and Local Governments, and Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. OQOur audit was
performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2002
as required by OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations 1s presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and, 1n our opinion, 1s fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

This report 1s intended solely for the information and use of the Board, the School Board’s
management and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, such as the State of
Louisiana and Legislative Auditor’s Office and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified parties.

el bethooits + Jyllndl

April 3, 2003
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

COVINGTON, LOUISIANA

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor/
Program Name

United States Department of Agriculture
Passed Through Louisiana Depariment
of Agriculture;
Food Distribution Program

Fassed Through Louisiana Department
of Education:

School Breakfast Program

National School Lunch Program

Totat United States Department Of Agniculture

United States Department of Education
Direcl Progeam- After Schaol Leaming Centet

Direct Program- FIE-Funds to Improve Education

Passed Through Louisiana Peparlment of Education:

Adult Education-State Administered Frogram

Evenstart

Improving America's School Act (IASA).
Title I: Helping Disadvantaged
Children Meet High Standards

Title 1I; Dwight D. Eisenhower
Professional Development Program

Title tV: Safe and Drug Free
School and Communities

Title VI: Innovative Education
Program Sirategies

Class Size Reduction

Total IASA

CEDA Number

10.550

10.553
10.555

84.2878

84.215K

84.002A
84 .002A
84.002A
84.002A
84.002A
84 002A
84.002A

84.213C

84.010A
84.010A

84.010A
84.010A
84.010A
84 010A

84.281A
84.281A
84 281A

84.186A
84.186A
84_186A
B4.186A

84.298
84298

84 .340A
84.340A
84.340A
84.340A
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Pass Through
Grantor
Award Number

NONE

NONE
NONE

52878010850

R215K010009A

0244-52
280144-52
0044-52-C
0143-52
0222-52
0213-52
0207-52

PL100-297

01-T1-52
02-CI-52
02-T1-52
00-T1-52-1CIO
02-T1-52-C/O
01-T1-52CI10

01-50-52
02-50-52
00-50-52-1C/O

01-70-52
01-70-52-DCIO
00-70-52-DC/O
02-70-52

01-00-52
02-00-52

01-01-52CI0
01-01-52
00-01-52-6C/0
02-01-52

_Expenditures

$752,333

1,072,467
3,680,971

5,505,771

ey ep———r

1,462,781

{7,466

208,581
16,631
15,057
283
11,721
4,197
22,991

279,461

5,580

149,824
13,142
3,599,536
1.718
1,025
159,625

3,924,840

15,465
130,881
318

146,664

3,277
19,681
>44
150,707
174,209

13.608
213,170

226778

76,571
14,006
164
1,016,641
1,107,382 _
5,579,873




i-ederal Grantor/

Pass-Through Grantor/
Program Name
Individuals with Disabiliiies

Education Act (IDEA):
Fart B-Regular Education

Preschool Education

Par{ H-Infants and Families

Total IDEA

Vocational Educalion:
Basic Grants to States

L FARN-Educate America Act (EAA):

’rofessional Development

Schoaol to Work

Technology t.iteracy Challenge

High Schools That Work

Total United States Department of Education

National Science Foundaticn

Direct Program - Presidential Award for Excellence
in Science and Mathemalics Teaching

Total National Science Foundation

CFDA Number

United States Department of Health and Human Development
Passed Through the Louisiana Deparlment of Education:

TANF

TANF-PreGED Skills Option Program

TANF-Early Childhood Development
TANF -After School Tutorial Proegram

84.027A
84.027A

84.173A
84.173A

84.181A
84.181A

84 048

84.276A

84 278E
84 278E
84.278E

84 318X
84 318X
84.318X
84.318X
84.318X

84.243

47 066

93.558
03.558
93.558
93.558

Total United States Department of Health and Human Development

United States Depariment of Defense

Air Force - JROTC
Army - JROTC
Marnes - JROTC
Navy - JROTC

Total United Slates Department of Defense

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Federal Awards

12.998
12.998
12.998
12.998
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Pass Through

Grantor

Award Number

28-02-B1-52
00-B1-52-5

28-02-P1-52
28-01-P1-52

28-01-H3-52

28-02-C5-52

0202-52

2800PD-52L

NONL
NONE

STW-0054-2001

280146-52
280114-52
280149-52
0214-52
0236-52

NONE

NONE

238-52
236-52
235-52
NONE

NONE
NONE
NONE
NONE

Expenditures

$3,553,348
929,458

4,482,806

247 167
40,862

288,029

896
18,848

18,844

4,789,779

296,423

2,863

23,251
2274
10,000

35,525

21,562
54,346
7.527
179,270
144 841

407,546

4,491

12,936,208

5,692

5,692

105,879
310,415
226,718

6,778

649,790

B2.473
91215
43,091
139,000

365.779_

$19.458.830
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

June 30, 2002

(General

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity
of all federal awards of the St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board).
The School Board reporting entity is defined in the notes to the financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2002. All federal awards received directly from federal
agencies arc included on the schedule, as well as federal awards passed-through
other government agencies.

Basis of Accounting

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 1s presented using the modified
accrual basis of accounting, which 1s described 1n the notes to the School Board's
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2002. Commodities received, which
are non-cash revenue, are valued at prices provided by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture. Any received but unused commodities are recorded as deferred revenue
until used.

Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements

Federal revenues are reported in the School Board's financial statements as follows:

(General Fund — Grants S 583,265
Special Revenue Fund 18,875,565
Total $ 19,458,830

Relationship to Federal Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree with the
amounts reported i the related fedcral financial reports, except for the amounts 1n
reports submitted as of a date subsequent to June 30, 2002, which will differ from
the schedule by the amount of encumbrances as of June 30, 2002, hiquidated to the
dates of the report.
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2002

(1} Summary of Auditors”™ Results

() The type of report issucd on the (tnancial statements: unqualified opinon
(b) Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit ot the financial
statements: none reported Material weaknesses: no
(¢) Noncompliance which is material to the f[inancial statements: no
(d) Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs: yes Vaterial weaknesses: no
(&) The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: ungualified opinton
() Any audit findings which arc required to be reported under Section 510(a) of OMB Circular
A-133: yes
(g) Major program:
United States Department ot Education:
Improving America’s School Act (IASA), CFDA No. 84.010
Special Education Cluster, CFDA Numbers 84.027 and 84.173
Twenty-first Century Community Learning Centers, CFDA No. 84,2878
United States Department ot Health and Human Services:
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), CI'DA No. 93.558
(h) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 1ype B programs: $583.765
(i) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under Scction 530 of OMB Circular A-133: yes

(2) Findings Relating to the inancial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards: None

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs relating to 'ederal Awards: ycs

2002-1

Federal program and specific federal award identification:

CFDA Title: Improving America’s School Act (1ASA)

CFDA Number; 84.010

Federal award number: None
Criteria: OMB Circular A-87, item h, subpart 4, requires that employees working on a sole
single Federal award, support by periodic certifications that the cruployees worked solely on that
program for the period covered by periodic certifications. These certifications should be prepared
at least semi-annually and will be signed by the employee or supervisory official having tirst
hand knowlcedge of the work performed by the employee. For employees working on multiple
activities or cost objectives, a distribution of their salaries or wages should be supported by
personnel activity reports or equivalent documentation which meets the standards defined in the
Circular; at a minimum, the reports should be made at least monthly.
Condition: QOut of a sample of forly emploveus selected. three office employees did not have
certifications.
Questioned Costs: Questioned costs, if any, cannot be determined.
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Continued

Context: Certifications were not completed for all required employees.

Effect: Certifications were not completed for all required employees.

Cause: The Program Director had knowledge of the requirements but the certitications were not
required to be completed.

Recommendation: The Program Director should comply with the provisions ol OMB Circular A-
87.

Management's response: Certifications were obtained and signed by the appropriate supervisory
otficial as required on all employees tor Title T; however, the three mussing certifications were
those certifications required for the three supervisors for the department. We were not aware that
certifications were required on supervisory officials and upon notification the supervisor for Title
I obtained the certifications and will continuc to do so. Contact Person: Phyllis Morgan,
Supervisor of Instruction - Title I (985) 898-6428.

2002-2

Federal program and specific federal award identification:

CFDA Title: Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) — Part B

CFDA Number: 84.027

tederal award number: None
Criteria: OMDB Circular A-87, item h, subpart 4, requires that cmployees working on a sole
single Federal award, support by periodic certifications that the employees worked solely on that
program for the period covered by periodic certifications. These certifications should be prepared
at least semi-annually and will be signed by the employee or supervisory official having first
hand knowledge of the work performed by the employee. For employees working on multiple
activities or cost objectives, a distribution of their salaries or wages should be supported by
personnel activity reports or equivalent documentation which meets the standards defined m the
Circular; at a minimum, the reports should be made at least monthly.
Condition: Out of a sample of forty employees sclected, no certifications were provided for
twenty-six employees.
Questioned Costs: Questioned costs, if any, cannot be determined.
Context: Certifications were not complcted for all required employees.
Effect: Certifications were not completed for all required employees.

Cause: The Program Director had knowledge of the requirements but the certifications were not
required to be completed.

Recommendution: The Program Director should comply with the provisions ot OMB Circular A-
87.

Munagement’s response:  We are aware of the requirement for certifications and will obtain the
necessary certifications for the period in question. In the future, certifications will be required on
all employees and supervisory officials and will be collected by the Supervisor of Special
Education. Contact Person: Carole D. Hillier, Supervisor of Special Education (985) 898-3310.
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOIL. BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued

2002-3

Federal program and specific federal award identification:

CFDA Title: Individuals wath Disabihitics Educaton Act {(IDEA) - Part B

CTDA Number: 84.027

l'ederal award number: Nonc
Criteria:  In accordance with OMB Circular A-87 Attachment B item h. charges to Federal
awards for salaries and wages will be based on pavrolls documented in accordance with gencrally
accepted practice ot the governmental unit.
Condition:  An cmployee was overpaid by 313490 and the salary was charged (o the Federal
(Grant.

Questioned Costs: The questioned costs are 515,490,

Context: The employee was overpaid and the tederal grant was overcharged.

Effect: "The Federal Grant was overcharged by $15,490.

Cause: ‘The cmployvee was bemnyg paid tull salary when she was on sick leave and should have
only been pard 4 portron of regular salacy or no salary at all,

Recommendation: The Program Director should periodically review the salary charges to Federal
Grants to verify comphance.

Manuygement's respanse:  The overpayment was discovered and corrected by departmental
personnel prior to its discovery by the auditors and steps were already being taken toward sceking
reimbursement from the employee.  The application for Jeave was submitted to personnel and
approved prior to granting of any leave. The approval was torwarded to the school from which
the application was orteinated. The school should have entered the employee as on leave when
entering himonthly payroll information. However, the school nurse tn question works at several
schools throughout the system and becausce of this the base school was not entering the employee
as absent and thus the employee continued to receive [ull pay. The amount in question was
subsequently removed trom the federal programs and recorded as a receivable from the employee
m the general [und., The school will reimburse the funds through reduction of a subsequent
reimbursement request. The Personnel Department has supphied 2ll schools and departments with
a [ist of s base personnel and reinstructed them as to their responstbility as it relates to payroll
information for absent employees. Contact Person: Pete Jabbia, Director of Personnel (983) 89&-
3223,

2002-4
Federal program and specific federal award identification.
CFDA Title: Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDTTA) - Part B and Improving
America’s School Act (IASA)
CEFDA Numbers: 84.027 and 84.010
Federal award number: None

Criteria: In accordance with OMB Circular A-87 Attachment B, Section 23, Ttem d, Subpart 3,
contributions to reserve contributions to reserves for workman’s compensation should be based
on sound actuarial principles.

Condition: The current rates charged to Federal grants for workinan's compensation charges
have not been reviewed for several years.
Questioned Costs: Questioned costs 1f any cannot be determined
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ST. TAVMIMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosis, Continued

Context: A total of $16,730 for workman's compensation charees was charged (o the Title |
funds during 2002, A total of $16.339 tor workman’s compensation charges was charged to
Spectal Educanon funds during 2002

Effect: Rates charged to federat tunds may not be accurate.

Cause: The School Board need to comply with OMB Circular A-87 Artachment B, Section 23,
ltem d, Subpart 3.

Recommendation: We recommend that the School Board obtain an actuartal study of cash on
hand and rates charged for premiums for the workman's compensation lund.

Munagement's response: We agree that the rates charged for workers’ compensation charges
should be based on sound actuarial principles. We are rescarching this matter o determine the
best route to take in determining a new workers’ compensation rate. In fiscal year ending June
30, 2002, the School Board collected $1,671,646 1in premiums and paid out $1.930,360 1n
henefits. The Workers” Compensation fund had an operating loss of $%%86,830 for the samc
pertod. Contact Person: Ronald Caruso, Director of Business Aftairs (983) 898-3217.

2002-5

Federal program and specific federal award identification;

CFDA Title: Twenty-first Century Community [earning Centers

CFDA Number: 34.287B

Federal award number: None
Criteria:  OMB Circular A-87, ttem h, subpart 4, requires that employees working on a sole
single Federal award, support by periodic certifications that the employees worked solely on that
program for the period covered by periodic certitications. These certifications should be prepared
at least semi-annually and will be signed by the employee or supervisory oflicial having first
hand knowledge of the work pertormed by the employee, For employees working on multiple
activities or cost objectives, a distribution of their salaries or wages should be supported by
personnel aclivity reports or equivalent documentation which meets the standards dehined i the
Circular; at a minimum, the reports should be made at least monthly.
Condition: Qut of a sample of forty employecs selected, no certifications were provided [or nine
cmployees. |
Questioned Costs: Questioned costs, 1l any, cannot be determined.
Context: Certitications were not completed tor all required employeces.
Effect. Certifications were not completed for all required emplovees.
Cause: The Program Director had no knowledge of the requirements.

Recommendution: The Program Dircctor should comply with the provisions of ONMB Cireular A-
87.

Muanagement’s response. We are aware ot the requirement tor certitications and will obtan the
necessary certifications for the peniod in question.  In the future. certthications will be requred
for all employees and supervisory ofticials and will be collected by the Supervisor of Elemenlary
[nstruction.  Contact Person:  Marnon Arrowsmith, Supervisor of Elementary Instruction {(983)
$92-2276.
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, L.ouisiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued

2002-6

Federal program and specific federal award identification:

CFDA Title: Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)

CFDA Number: 93.558

Federal award number: None
Criteria:  OMB Circular A-87, itecm h, subpart 4, requires that employees working on a sole
single Federal award, support by periodic certifications that the employees worked solely on that
program for the period covered by periodic certifications. These certifications should be prepared
at least semi-annually and will be signed by the employee or supervisory official having first
hand knowledge of the work performed by the employee. For employecs working on multiple
activities or cost objectives, a distribution of their salaries or wages should be supported by
personnel activity reports or equivalent documentation which meets the standards detined in the
Circular; at a minimum, the reports should be made at least monthly.

Condition: Oul of a sample of forty employees selected, no certifications were provided for
seven employees.

Questioned Costs: Questioned costs, if any, cannot be determined.

Context: Certifications were not completed for all required employees.

Effect: Certafications were not completed for all required employees.

Cuuse: The Program Director had no knowledge of the requirements,

Recommendution: The Program Director should comply with the provisions of OMB Circular A-
87.

Management’s response:  We are aware of the requirement for certifications and will obtain the
necessary certifications for the period in question. In the future, certifications will be required
for all employees and supervisory officials and will be collected by the Supervisor of Elementary
Instruction and Acting Assistant Superintendent Curriculum and Instruction. Contact Persons:
Marion Arrowsmith, Supervisor of Elementary Instruction and Dr. Margo Guilott, Ph.D., Acting
Assistant Supermtendent Curriculum and Instruction.
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ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Covington, Louisiana

Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2002

Federal program and specific federal award identification:
CFDA Title: National School Lunch Program
CI'DA Number: 10.555

Federal award number: None

Criteria: CIFR 245.6a requires the School Board to verify the current free and reduced
price eligibility of households sclected from a sample of applications that it has approve
tor free or reduced price meals.

Condition: During the verification process, if the School Board determines that a student
docs not meet the cligibility requirements for free or reduced price lunch the student’s
meal plan should be changed accordingly. For 1 of 30 verifications we reviewed, we
noted the student’s records did not indicate hat the student was eligible lor reduce price
lunch, however, the student’s meal plan was not changed to paid.

Questioned Costs: The student received 180 reduced price meals during the school year,
resulling in a known questioned cost of $257. The number of students receiving reduced

price mcals as of June 30, 2001 was 2,.251.

Recommendation:  The School Board should review that all student meal plan changes
as determined by the verification test have been made.

Management’s response: Resolved
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Postlethwaite & Netterville

A Professional Accounting Corporation
Associated Offices in Principat Cities of the United States

WWw.pncpa.com

Independent Accountants’ Report
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures

To the Members of the
St. Tammany Parish School Board

Covington, Louisiana:

We have performed the procedures included in the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide and
enumerated below, which were agreed to by the management of the St. Tammany Parish School
Board (the School Board) and the Legislature Auditor, State of Louisiana, solely to assist users in
evaluating management’s assertions about the performance and statistical data accompanying the
annual financial statements of the School Board and to determine whether the specified schedules
are free of obvious errors and omissions as provided by the Board of Elementary and Secondary
Education (BESE) Bulletin. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed in
accordance with standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of the report.
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described
below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

Our procedures and findings relate to the accompanying schedules of supplemental information
and are as follows:

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources
(Schedule 1)

1) We selected a random sample of 25 transactions and reviewed supporting documentation
to determine if the sampled expenditures/revenues are classified correctly and are
reported in the proper amounts for each of the following amounts reported on the

schedule:

¢ Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures,

¢ Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures,

e Total Local Taxation Revenue,

o Total chal Earnings on Investment in Real Property,
o Total State Revenue 1in Lieu of Taxes,

¢ Nonpublic Textbook Revenue, and

e Nonpublic Transportation Revenue.

_1-

30th Floor - Energy Centre = 1100 Poydras Street = New Orleans, LA 70163-3000 =  Tel: 504.569.2978
2324 Severn Avenue, Suite A+ Metairie, LA70001  «  Tel: 504.837.5990 -  Fax: 504.834.3609




We noted no exceptions in our sample of 25 f{ransactions. In testing the
mathematical accuracy of Schedule 1, P & N noted the Total General Fund

Instructional Expenditures does not sum to the total reported on Schedule 1.

Education Levels of Public School Staff (Schedule 2)

2.

We were unable to reconcile the total number of full-time classroom teachers per the
schedule “Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers”
(Schedule 4) to the combined total number of full-time classroom teachers per this
schedule and to school board supporting payroll records as of October 1°.

The total number of full-time teachers as reported on Schedule 2 is 2,414 and the
total number of full-time teachers as reported on Schedule 4 is 2,391.

We were unable to reconcile the combined fotal of principals and assistant principals
per the schedule “Expenience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers”
(Schedule 4) to the combined total of principals and assistant principals per this
schedule.

The total number of principals and assistant principals as reported on Schedule 2
is 103 and the total number of principals and assistant principals as reported on
Schedule 4 is 104.

We did not obtain a list of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by
classification as of October 1* and as reported on the schedule. The data provided by
the School Board was as of June 2001, we were unable to trace a random sample of 25

teachers to the individual’s personnel file and determine if the individual’s education
level was properly classified on the schedule.

Number and Type of Public Schools (Schedule 3)

J.

We obtained-a list of schools by type as reported on the schedule. We compared the list
to the schools and grade levels as reported on the Title 1 Grants to Local Educational

Agencies (CFDA 84.010) application.

Lake Harbor Middle School, Operation Jumpstart, Covington Pathways, and
Slidell Pathways were included on Schedule 3 but not reported on the Title I

application.

Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers (Schedule 4)

6.

We obtained a list of teachers by classification as of October 1st and as reported on the
schedule and traced a sample of 20 teachers to the mdividual’s personnel file and
deterrmned 1f the mmdividual’s experience was properly classified on the schedule. We
did not obtain a list of Principals and Assistant Principals as of October 1*.

No exceptions noted on the 20 classroom teachers selected for testwork.
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Public School Staff Data (Schedule 5)

7. We did not obtain a list of all classroom teachers including their base salary, extra
compensation, and ROTC or rehired retiree status as well as full-time equivalent as
reported on the schedule and were unable to trace a random sample of 25 teachers to the
individual’s  persommel file and determined if the individual’s salary, extra
compensation, and full-time equivalents were properly included on the schedule. We
were provided with a copy of the PEP report to the State of Louisiana which did not
contain the data in the required format.

8. We were unable to recalculate the average salaries and full-time equivalents reported in
the schedule.

We did not obtain a list of all classroom teachers and were unable to perform this
recalculation,

Class Size Characteristics (Schedule 6)

9. We did not obtain a list of classes by school, schoo] type, and class size as reported on
the schedule and were unable to reconcile school type classifications to Schedule 3 data
as obtained in procedure 5. We were unable to trace a random sample of 10 classes to
the October 1% roll books for those classes and determined if the class was properly
classified on the schedule.

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) for the 21° Century (Schedule 7)
10. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as
reported by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board.

We noted no exceptions.

The Graduation Exit Exam for the 21* Century (Schedule 8)
11. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as
reported by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board.

We noted no exceptions.

The lowa Tests (Schedule 9)
12. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as
reported by the testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by the School Board.

We noted no exceptions.

We were not engaged to, and did not perform an examination, the objective of which would
be the expression of an opinion on management’s assertions. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have
come to our attention that would have been reported to you.




This report 1s intended solely for the use of management of the School Board, the Louisiana
Department of Education, the Louisiana Legislature, and the Legislative Auditor, State of
Louisiana, and should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken
responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures for their purposes. Under Louisiana
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public
document.

@MM rWM

December 26, 2002




ST. TAMMANY PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
COVINGTON, LOUISIANA

Schedules Required by State Law (R.S. 24:514 - Performance and Statistical Data)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Schedule 1 - General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local
Revenue Sources

This schedule includes general fund instructional and equipment expenditures. It also contains
local taxation revenue, earnings on investments, revenue in lieu of taxes, and nonpublic textbook
and transportation revenue. This data is used either in the Minimum Foundation Program (MFP)
formula or 1s presented annually in the MFP 70% Expenditure Requirement Report.

Schedule 2 - Education Levels of Public School Staff

This schedule includes the certificated and uncertificated number and percentage of full-time
classroom teachers and the number and percentage of principals and assistant principals with less
than a Bachelor's; Master's; Master's +30; Specialist in Education; and Ph. D or Ed..D. degrees.
This data 1s currently reported to the Legisiature in the Annual Financial and Statistical Report
(AFSR).

Schedule 3 - Number and Type of Public Schools
This schedule includes the number of elementary, middle/junior high, secondary and combination

schools in operation during the fiscal year. This data is currently reported to the Legislature in
the Annual Financial Statistical Report (AFSR).

Schedule 4 - Experience of Public Teachers and Full-time Classroom Teachers

'This schedule inciudes the number of years of expenence 1n teaching for assistant principals,
principals, and full-time classroom teachers. This data 1s currently reported to the Legislature in
the Annual Financial and Statistical Report (AFSR).

Schedule 5 - Public School Staff Data

This schedule includes average classroom teachers salary using full-time equivalents, including
and excluding ROTC and rchired retiree tecachers. This data is cumrently reported to the
Legislature m the Annual Financial and Statistical Report (AFSR).

Schedule 6 - Class Size Characteristics

This schedule includes the percent and number of classes with student enrollment int the following
ranges: 1-20, 21-26, 27-33, and 34+ students. This data 1s currently reported to the legislature in
the Annual School Report (ASR).



Schedule 7 - Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP)

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes summary scores by
district for grades 4 and & 1n each category tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, Proficient,
Basic, Approaching Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule includes three years of data.

Schedule 8 - The Graduation Exit Exam

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes summary scores by
district for grades 10 and 11 in each category tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, Proficient,
Basic, Approaching Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule inciudes three years of data.

Schedule 9 - The IOWA Tests

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes a summary score for
grades 3, 5, 6, 7 and 9 for each district. The summary score reported is the National Percentile
Rank showing relative position or rank as compared to a large, representative sample of students
in the same grade from the entire nation. This schedule includes three years of data.



St. Tammany Parish School Board
General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and

Certain Local Revenue Sources
2001-2002

General Fund Instructional and Equipment Expenditures

General Fund Instructional Expenditures:
Teacher and Student Interaction Activities:

Classroom

Teacher Salaries

Other Instructional Staff Activities
Employee Benefits

Purchased

Professional and Technical Services

Instructional Materials and Supplies
Instructional Equipment
Total Teacher and Student Interaction Activities

Other Instructional Activities

Pupil Support

Activities

Less: Equipment for Pupil Support Activities
Net Support Activities

Instructional Staff Services
Less: Equipment for Instructional Staff Services

Net {nstructional Staff Services

Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures

Total General

Fund Equipment Expenditures

Certain Local Revenue Sources

Local Taxation Revenue:
Constitutional Ad Valorem Taxes
Renewable Ad Valorem Taxes
Debt Service Ad Valorem Taxes

Up to 1% Collections by the Sheriff on Taxes Other Than School Taxes

Sales and Uses Taxes
Total Local Taxation Revenue

Local Earnings on Investments in Real Property:
Eamings from 16th Section Property

Earnings from Other Real Property
Total Local Earnings on Investments in Real Property

State Revenue in Leiu of Taxes:

Revenue S
Revenue S
Revenue S

naring - Constitutional Taxes
naring - Other Taxes

naring - Excess Portion

Other Revenue in Lieu of Taxes
Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes

Non Public Textbook Revenue

Non Public Transportation Revenue

Prepared by the St. Tammany Parish School Board

Schedule 1

85,846,618
13,270,187
29 184,416
201,700
4,788,922
245 456

133,537,299
398,599
8,432,040
(4,661)

8,427,379
7,467,590
(21,023}

7,446 567

149,411,245

1,320,825

2 425 492

30,888,762

14,008,713

931,340

52,847,765

101,192,072

0

0

0

131,432

1,667,890

0

0

1,799,322

140,288

361,644
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St. Tammany Parish School Board
Number and Type of Public Schools
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Schedule 3

Type | Number
Elementary 23
Middie/Jr. High h _ 18
Secondary 7
Combination 3
Total l 51

Note: Schools opened or closed during the fiscal year are included in this schedule

Prepared by the St. Tammany Parish School Board
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St. Tammany Parish School Board
Public School Staff Data
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002

All Classroom
Teachers

Classroom Teachers
Excluding ROTC
and Rehired Retirees

Schedule 5

Average Classroom
Teachers Salary $39,086
Including Extra Compensation

$39,032

Average Classroom
Teachers Salary $38,513

Exciuding Extra Compensation

$38,455

Number of Teacher Full-time
Equivalents {FTE's) used in 2,293
"Computatinn of Average Salaries

2277

Note: Figures reported include all sources of funding (l.e. Federal, State and Local) but exclue employee
benefits. Generally, retired teachers rehired to teach receive less compensation than non-retired teachers

and ROTC teachers receive more compensation because of federal supplement. Therefore, these
teachers are exciuded from the computation in the last column, This schedule excludes day-to-day

substitutes and temporary employees.

Prepared by the St. Tammany Parish School Board
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St. Tammany Parish School Board Schedule 9
The IOWA Tests
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

Composite

Test of Basic Skills (ITBS)

Graded | 60 [ 70 | 69
Grade5 | 66 | 66 | 6
Grade6 | 67 | 68 | 67 |
Grade7 | 65 | 64 | 64

Test of Educational Development (ITED)

Scores are reported by National Percentile Rank. A Student's Naticnal Percentile Rank shows the
Student's relative position or rank as compared to a large, representaive sample of students in the same
grade from the entire nation. A student with a score of 72 indicates that the student scored the same
or better than 72 percent of the students in the norm group.

Prepared by the St. Tammany Parish School Board

-15 -



Postlethwaite & Netterville

A Professional Accounting Corporation
Associoted Offices in Principal Cities of the United States

www.pncpa.com

CONFIDENTIAL

December 5, 2002

Members of the St. Tammany Parish School Board
St. Tammany Parish School Board

212 West 17™ Avenue
Covington, Louisiana 70439-0940

Dear Members of the Board:

We have audited the financial statements of the St. Tammany Parish School Board (the School Board)
for the year ended June 30, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated December 5, 2002, which was
unqualified. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the School Board, we
considered the School Board’s internal control in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on internal
control. We have not considered internal control since the date of our report.

Our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an bpinion on the financial statements
and, therefore, may not bring to light all weaknesses i policies or procedures that may exist. We aim,
however, to use our knowledge of the School Board’s orgamization gained during our work to make
comments and suggestions that we hope will be useful to you. The current year comments, with
management’s response, are included in Appendix A. The status of prior year comments, which have
been resolved, 1s included in Appendix B.

We would be pleased to discuss these comments and recommendations with you at any time.

This report is intended for the information of the members of the School Board, management and the
State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s Office, and 1s not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Gttt )l

30th Floor - Energy Centre  + 1100 Poydras Street +  New Orleans, LA 70163-3000 +  Tel: 504.569.2978
2324 Severn Avenue, Suite A+ Metairie, LA70001 ¢ Tel: 504.837.5990 + Fax: 504.834.3609




Appendix A
Current Year Comments

02.1 - Information Technology

As part of the audit, we reviewed the general controls over the information system processes of the
School Board. We noted the following recommendations:

e The School Board needs to develop a disaster recovery plan/business contmuity plan. At the
very least, server documentation, configuration, backed up data and copies of license
agreements should be stored off site. While management believes a local network
consulting firm in New Orleans would help in restoring data and equipment if a complete
loss occurred, a formal agreement 1s not in place. We recommend that a complete disaster
and business continuity plan be developed, contracts/agreements approved as necessary and
appropriate personnel be trained. A complete plan should consist of all equipment and
configurations, as well as software license agreements.

o The School Board should assess the fire protection in both the computer room and network
arca. A complete review should be made for fire protection and planning. At the very least,
Halon/FM 200 fire extinguishers should be mounted in obvious places.

Management’s Response

We have a disaster recovery plan and an offsite backup location. We do believe that it would be
improved by bringing licenses off site and creating formal agreements for the local network-
consulting firm. We will look 1nto the matter and make a determination after consultation with
management and legal representation. The Personnel building meets fire codes in that extinguishers
are at every exit. We are currently investigating a suppression system similar to the one
recommended. Contact Person: Louis Boullion, Director of Data Processing, (985) 898-3237.

02.2 — Bank Reconciliations

The bank reconciliations for payroll and accounts payable checking accounts were not reconciled
during fiscal year 2002. We recommend the School Board reconcile all bank accounts monthly; if
delay sttuations arose, the chief financial officer/controller should be notified and corrective actions

should be taken.

Management Response:

Bank reconciliations will be performed monthly on all bank accounts. Contact Person: Ronald
Caruso, Director of Business Atfairs, (985) 898-3217.



Appendix B

Prior Year Comments
01.1 — School Lunch Program Verifications

CFR 245.6a requires entities participating in the National School Lunch Program to verify the
current free and reduced price eligibility of houscholds selected {from a sample of the applications it
has approved. Dunng the venfication process if the School Board determines that a student does not
meet eligibtlity requirements for free or reduced lunch the student’s meal plan should be changed
accordingly. For 1 of the 30 venfications we reviewed, we noted the student’s records did not
indicate the student was eligible for reduced price lunch; however, the student’s meal plan was not
changed. We recommend that procedures be put in place to ensure that all changes to be made are
accurately reflected in the records and that the changes are reviewed by a party other than the
individual responsible for the input.

Status

All verifications are being subsequently verified by an independent employee. Contact Person:
Sylvia Dunn, Director of School Food Services, (985) 898-3371

01.2 — Reporting Model Changes

After years of study and consideration of the needs of users of government financial statements, the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued its revolutionary new reporting model in
June 2000. The new model dramatically changes the presentation of governments’ external financial
statements. In the GASB’s view, the objective of the new model is to enhance the clarity and
usefulness of government financial statements to the citizenry, oversight bodies, investors and
creditors. It will substantially affect the Board’s financial data accumulation and financial statement
presentation processes. Some of the key aspects of the changes follow:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) — A comprehensive MD&A will now be
included as required supplementary information. The MD&A will introduce the financial
staternents by presenting an analysis of the government’s financial performance for the year
and its financial position at year-end. The MD&A will be in addition to the transmittal letter
currently required for the Government Finance Officer’s Association (GFQOA) award
candidates, such as your School Board, but we expect that the GFOA will make changes in
their requirements so as to avoid any duplication between the two documents.

Statement of Activities — Governments will now be required to use a “net program cost”
format for the entify-wide statements instead of a traditional operating statement. This new
format groups revenues and expenses by functional categories (such as public safety, public
works, etc.) The new purpose of the new statement 1s to inform readers about the cost of
specific functions to the extent to which they are financed with program revenues or general
revenues of the government (such as tax revenues). Governments will have the option of
reporting both direct and mdirect program costs.



Appendix B, continued

Capital Contributions — Capital contributions to enterprise funds would be reported as non-
operating revenues (rather than direct additions to equity); governments would no longer
report contributed capital equity accounts. This change would recognize all contributed
resources — meluding grants, tap fees, and equity accounts. It would also eliminate the
confusion caused by reporting negative retained earnings {(offset) by large contributed capital
balances.

The effective date of the new pronouncement will require implementation by the School Board for its
year ending June 30, 2002. The magnitude of these changes and the time required to prepare for
implementation should not be underestimated. We recommend that the School Board begin to look
at its systems and processes to ensure that the required information will be available to ensure timely
implementation. We recommend that the School Board consider the cost of required changes to its
systems and processes to ensure availability of necessary tunds i 1ts upcoming budget and also
consider identifying training programs for key staff members to attend.

Status

The School Board implemented GASB Statement 34 beginning fiscal year ending June 30, 2002.
Contact Person; Brett M. Stoltz, CPA, CGFM, Chief Accountant, (985) 898-3220.

—_—— - - - . ——— ————



